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The Tory Record

The whole stuck in Irade of the Tory |)arty iu this caiiipaigu

consists of vague and indefinite charges of corruption on the

part of the Liber.'xls and they hope by this method to blind the

ey<»8 of the electorate to the real issues, and to have returned

to power the men who were responsible for many of the political

misdeeds of the Tory party in the past. It is a well-known fact

that the Tories had for years an organized gang of expert

brilxTs, personators and pluggers, ballot stealers and ballot

switchers, by whose operations they were kept in power, and

all this howling about corruption and graft is intended to cover

up their own nasty work. Do the people of Canada want to

return to power the men under whose rule there existed the

worst saturnalia of corruption, graft and political fraud that

ever disgraced a civilized country? Following the exposures

in connection with the general elections of 1891 the British press

commented on the methods of the then Tory Qoverument in

scathing terms. Following are only a few of the extracts

:

The London Times: "Here in the Mother Country there can

be only one feeling, that of deep regret for tlic wrong done to

the fair fame of the eldest of her daughters,"

London Graphic: "It is no longer possible to doubt that cor-

ruption in its worst form is rampant in a large portion of the

Canadian civil service."

London Telegraph: "Enough, unfortunately, is already

known in England to make it clear that only the most resolute

and drastic purification can redeem public life in Canada from

the taint of corruption, the like of which we have not seen in our

own country for hundreds of years."

London Echo: "No country can prosper where public de-

partments are in league with fraudulent contractors, and where

Ministers are open to offers."

St. James' Gazette: "The existence of an organized system

of corruption among public officials in Canada has been con-

clusively proved, and like everything else on the American con-

tinent the bribery has been colossal."



The Graphic Despatch: "Even Tai.iinany flail smclU sweet
and c ear. iii eompariaon with the huge stink-pot of the Cn-
•ervative flovernment.

"

It i8 our purpose to n-fer in the following pages to some of
the matters from whieh the Tories are so anxious to divert the
public mind. We cannot do more than give a brief review of
only a small portion of the electoral and administrative misdeeds
of the Tory jmrty during the past few years:

Wholeaale Bribftry in Quebec. Qeneral Elections of 1887.

In th.. General Elections of 1887 the Tories had an immense
campni-.i fun.l "milked" from contractors, who. of curse
recoup,.,! th.ins..lv,.s from the Public Treasury. Foll,.wing aresome ,if \\w i'X|ifii,litures:

'

yuolMM- ,„unty (Sir A. <',.ron, M.P.) *18/,on.no

Qm-b.... \\ert (Tl.os. .M,.(ir,.ovy, M.P.)... «,ooO.(K)
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700.00
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-.:::::::::::::::::::: \SZ
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V. •

^- • •, ;i,ooo.oo

Yanmska :'„'„„"
St. Maurii'c. . .

Cli.Trlevoix. . . ,

Chiroutinii oi>-,.n<^

j^-^rv'
::::::::::;:::::;:::: S:Dor,ll<.stcr , r,nn oa

''li;!rli'\-.iix

4,000.00
2,500.00
.3,000.00

.S,000.00
••'K"'" 1,000.00

Larg," sums were paid the .subsidized press.

i^i^^iuJ^T^'u ^}\ "• ^/"^^^i"'« personal organ, received
$35,000. In all. Ix^tween .$1,50.000 and $200,000 "donated" bv
contractors, was use.I in Quebec district alone. (See Hansard )



Haldimand Election!.

Until February, 1887, when Dr. Montague was first a candi-

date in Haldimand. th*' county was considered safely Liberal.

By «ne of the most disgraceful carnivals of corruption and fraud
ever known in Canada, he succeeded in reducing the Liberal

majority to 13, which was converted into a majority of one for

Montague on a recount. The Liberals protested the election

and not only exposed the wholesale corruption which had been

practised l)iif it was actually shown at the trial that Colter (Lib.),

had a majority and should have been niturned as the member.
Dr. Montague had held the scat which had been stolen for hira

and had pocketed the sessional indemnity which rightly belonged

to Colter.

At the next election in November, 1887. one, James Murray,
was deputy returning oflRcer at Ilagcrsville, and it was after-

wards proven that he had spoiled eight ballots cast for Colter

by marking them for Montague as well In face of this, Murray
was again appointed deputy returning officer, notwithstanding
the protests of the Liberals, and at the polling place where he
presided wholesale personation was carried on with his knowl-
edge and assistance. Criminal proceedings were t.iken against

him, he was committed for trial, released on bail ai absconded
to Buffalo, where he fully confessed his crime.

Another deputy returning officer, Henry J. Ince, to whose
appointment the Liberals had strenuously objected, went to the
polling place on the Indian reserve the night before the election,

and next morning when the Liberal scrutineers arrived at the

polling place at 8.05 (55 minutes before the poll should have
been opened), they found that voting had been going on for some
time, and that a large number of bogus votes had already been
polled.

A number of Montague's agents were present, aiding and
abetting in the fraud. Four of them were afterwards appointed
to positions in the Customs. Ince was put on trial but the jury
disagreed, only one man holding out for acquittal. The poll

clerk at this poll drove into the adjoining County of Brant and
voted before five o'clock on the same day, after the Haldimand
poll had been closed and the ballots counted.



Dr. Monfjue , Utter to th. Indian.

tXiH (NDI.ANs (tNLV

thr ..irclar. (Seo offlnn 'dS^^^^^ .""^^'l'"^ t" <l" with
Pajro 2.474^

"• iml.-s. sfssion of is*)], vol. 2.

think I Maw it the first fimp »h T u* ' recognize circular-
«i.";:«t swear it w.ThVSt.oTrT.*''"

"''''''"'• ""^ ^
w«. .ntr„;"Vh';a'ra-:^ 'fr r-

n-"-. aa, that circular
not think I wrotrX" haJor^ain "/

^'f
^'""'^^=

^ ^"
elecfoM day that they were distriL,?!; ' Thn

'"''' ^'"''' ""
hav. ..Of tho circular on Monday m^nine

''^^"''\ '^ "'"'"
to show what „onscnsc they were •^' *""'" " ^"^ «**y

Then there is the evidence of R w >f . u
•.'The Doctor wrote it; I dictated it^r^«"-r- "'"' ""^^^

-session of 1891. vol. 2. page 2587)
'''"' "

^^''''at^^-

"

The Frontenac Election (Ont.), 1890.

wa« dispensed froralle in the -^'"'r^^"^'^''*^''- ^^
drive shed, an ice house a J t mil. .f ' \'^T''^''

^^'•«"'"- «
•

^••^t mill, etc. An hotelkeeper named



Abrnmjt flll«<l ii liottl.- with whinkoy lur th.- Ti»ry i-aiididat.' on

plwtion <lfly it wns dintriJuitt'd in jiirh Ity h young law cU-rk

nainiMl Hatim. (IWorcU ol I '.Lit ion drnvX nnd daily paporN,

Novt-niht-r L"-'n(J. iHfh).

)

Th« Dominion Otneral Elections of 1891.

Then- is no doubt now that the liiiM'PHls won a majority i>f

scuts in tht" Dominion general olecliong of 1891, b>it that enough

scatH \vor»' stolen for the Tories to give them an apparent major-

ity. ll<'turns were jm»Kled. ballot boxes stolen and stuflfed after

the elections, nnd «>very species of fraud resorted to in order to

subvert the will of the people. The following an- only samples

of what took pliiee in dozens of other eonstitueneies

:

The Weit Northumberland Oaae of 1891.

Ilarjiriift (Fiib. i was .ieclared .'leeted by :Ui majority. On

the rttnunt it njipcared that a deputy retnrninit officer, while

th<' ballots w.Tc in his cistody. hatl taken tlieni ..nl of 'he box

and put them in his safe. While the ballots wert' in the safe,

some one tampered "ith them, with the result that, on the re-

count, there w<!re found 'i3 for IlarRraft -4H without initials,

and actually printed upon different paper from the regular

ballots, and with blacker ink. and 7 defaced by marks on the

Itack. The 48 uninitialed ballots were all in four polling sub-

divisious. namely; H in No. 1, Cobourg; 19 in No. 2 Cobourg;

8 in No. 10, Ha.nilttm Township; and 15 in No. 19. Haldimand

Township. The seven defaced ballots were all in one division,

No. 2 Cobourg. The deputy returning oflicers and scrutineers

all asserted most positively that t .ery ballot counted had the

deputy's initials on them and that the defacetl ballots had

Ix-en defaced after the count.

Plainly, ballots were stolen and forg.-ries substituted. The

Judge, however, refused to give eflfeet ti; the fraud, and the

Liberal candidate was declared elected, thus nullifying the base

ctmspiracv.

The North Middlesex Case of 1891.

On the night of the election Taylor (Lib.^ had a majority

of 3. The official figures of the Returning Officer gave Hutehins

a majority of 2. Tn the middle of a pile of ballots that had In-en



electuni.
*^*^*****'- ^^ «*<'•« '"^^A* had been made after the

The South Grey Case of 1891

The South Victoria Case of 1891.

The MuBkoka and Parry Sound Election of 1891.

and'^M Z,rS '}'
^'^n'"^

scrutineers were not aUowed to vote

S^te^SttuiS ^r.^""'"'^"*^^'
scrutineer, voted on ee^l

jome cases whole poUing iSvilt te e drsWhLr'

T

atPran^'sBay (61LibeLla^?^3lrrv^3t^::;^^^^^^^^^^



there were only U names on the Dominion Voter, List, at French

mZ and not one at Frank', Bay. The contents of two baUot

boxes containing Liberal majorities were burned.

The South Wentworth Case of 1891.

Carpenter (Con ) was declared elected by %™«J«";y
j'

J,^

over Middleton (Lib.). On a recount it was found th«t one

denutv returning officer had returned a majority of 35 lor

Spenter "hen it was actually for Middleton, thus increasing

Carpenter's majority by 70. In two polling booths -«- ballote

were found in t^^^ box than the deputy returning officers had

recorded in the poll book. Carpenter was ahead one vote in the

rSount Fi teen good ballots for Middleton (Lib.) were wrongly

Xced in the envelope with the spoiled ballots. The Judge had

no authority to open this envelope; the 15 ballote were no

counted, and the Conservative was unfairly returned for the

riding. _ . _^.
Porter, M.P., Convicted of Voting Twice.

E Qus Porter, M.P. for West Hastings, voted twice deliber-

ately for the Tory candidate in West Hastings in the general

elections of 1891. At that time he was Mayor of the City of

Xme and on January 15th, 1^02J^e -as
^^fJ^^r^^

her for West Hastings. As soon as he found tba* t^ie J^iberals

hid detected his criminal act, he took advantage of Police

Magistrate Flint's absence from the city and had an information

Jafd against himself late at night before two Tory alde™e'i
^

Justices of the Peace. The words, ''at 10
«;<J«f

-
^^^^^^^

noon," in the summons were crossed out and the word forth

wuJ'' substituted. Porter then pleaded guilty a^d was fined

$20 without imprisonment. Afterwards he was '"Jicted before

a G^and Jury convicted and sentenced to one hour m jad.

Porter is now one of the noble guard of Tory purists.

The Bast Elgin Election Case of 1891.

A document, very much soiled and worn, was produced at

the trial giving a memorandum of moneys corruptly spent in the

Eas Elgin elections of 1891. It was in the handwriting of

Mr Thos. W. Crothers. barrister of St Thomas, and wnUen

on hi« office paper. It was headed "Memo, for A. B. Sum
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Med $2,500; 'disbursementii " ti,„ j
of active Toiy wo7ke«t EJtmtT°"^l ^"^* " '°°» ^^'^

opposite their names amointinj^ n aU To $206.'""". "'
T^^^with the words "Forward $2 OB'S "p T? ' ""^ concluded

witness box and admitt^ that th. hJ?™*^T'
^"' P"* '° t^e

writing and that th" nSaU ''A R^^""'°*
""^ '° ^^ ^and-

Ingram, M.P., but tried to elolat f/ « ^'':V°*'°*^«d ^«'' A. B.
had got it soiled and VornT^Teavirg''it''tt .V'''

''"'' ^^
tree for two weeks anrl th^r.

"-^
,*°f^'''«

" out under an apple
The election was vo ded on oth" r evi7*

*' ?^ ^''^"^ ««^'«^'-

the Judges were not forced to sav 7^fZVJ 'u^P""" «« ^^^^
or not. but commented ver; se^verelfrpi;!":"^

"'°MrV%^"°
by his own veSrofS ,tj;'°P'«^^-°aI

Mr. Crothers . Tory candidate for EasfElgS^n this election.

Bart Elgin Bye-Election of 1892.

Libe?aLtul5"ottlt^^^^^^^^^^^ f«-^""->^ ^t^^ed. The
days before the e eSf WhPni''*' /•':?'" ^"^^« "°t" « ^ew
that hundreds of Sals^ho owS/'^

''' ^'^'^ ^^^^ ^«»"<1

lived in the riding for year L7k Property, and who had
Tories who had not lived ?r'th...-H f' "^ '^' ^'«*«' ^^le
and some who had not earied I "^L"^

^"^ ' """''«' °^ y«««-
them to a vote, were or tTe list. «fh™""'^.f

^^''" *« «"«««
before the election evLy rlt go L nfo^^rri'''

^''' *^« ^^^^
with voters coming in from RfffUK n^

^t Thomas was crowded
and all parts of 'h^ UnSed Sfates o"f

'''''?"«• ^"'^^^^

elected.
*^^*^^- ^^ course, Ingram was

The London Voters' List Fraud of 1892.

by j\'^W'K'trkt- ^^ '^ °-"^« P"* - *he «»ts
notice which they used had b .^n^ ""f'''

'^^' ^«™ ^t
Revising Barrister, vet when The ^«r''"''^

'''''''''''^ ^^ *»»«

rejected the notice on the .round Z >''™' *" ^'^ ^^"^^ ^'
allowed an amendment and d^rpl?

'* ''*' ^sufficient, but
The Tories appealo^to jie SS "'"^ °"' '' *' ''' '''^'^•

ruling, admit'tLg tha't Ka^n^tl^^^'n^t^^^^^ ™'''^ '?''^'

the opmion that the notice was invalid Thlp' • " ^^P'^^^'o?
then took the ground that in def^:?to^^^St^^^
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uot hear the objections. The Liberals appealed to t^«/>ivisiou«'

Court, consisting of Justices Armour. Street and Falconbndge^

who unanimously granted a mandamus compelling the Bev«mg

Barrister to hear the objections. He obeyed, and ruled that 23t)

of the names were wrongfully on the lists. The names however

were allowed to remain, pending an appeal by the Ton^ *»

the Court of Appeal. This Court, composed of Justices Hagarty,

Burton. Maelennan and Osier, hold that the notice wM good.

The Tories then appealed to the Supreme Court, and while the

. Appeal was pending in that Court, the election was held on

February 26th. 1892. One hundred and tnirty-one of the

iUegal votes were polled, notwithstanding the vigorous protest

of the Liberals, and 128 of them were for Carling and 3 for

Hyman. Not counting these illegal votes, Hyman was elected

by a majority of 16, yet the Tory returning officer declared

Carline elected by 109 majority. Carling took the seat belong-

fng to Hyman and held it until 1896. On March 9tk 1892, when

Carling'8 election depended upon the counting of the illegal

votes Judge Elliott decided the appeal heard before him in

Mov
'

1891 holding the notices invalid and reversing the decision

of seVen superior Judges. On May 9th, 1892 the Tory majorvty

in the House of Commons voted down Mr. Lister s motion for

the investigation of Judge Elliott 's partisan coQd'ict. Mr

Mulock charged on the floor of the House that Judge Elliott

had written partisan editorials on the subject for the London

Free Press (Tory), while it was standing for his .ludgment.

(See Hansard. May, 1892.)

The Chicoutiiai Bye-Election of 1892.

The candidates were Savard (Lib.) and Belley (Con.) and

•inother At the last moment the returning officer telegraphed

a man named Gosselin to hold a poll at Point aux Esquimaux.

His telegraphic instructions were. "Proceed to-morrow as fol-

lows- Get a small wooden box made, prepare a certain number

of ballot papers and write the names of the three candidates

upon them." And again on the day of the election he wired:

"If vou have no list allow those who are supposed to be electors

to vote and it will be all right." The deputy took the hmt^and

returned 63 voles for Belley (Con.) and none for Savard.

BeUey had 39 majority in the riding. Without these vot«i



IS

before . JuJge who™ ."b^h""T "*« '"' "™ Md

Kent, N.. .•y.;.Election of 1892.

mark the ballots'^orsa ^Se L^^^^ ^«« P-™'tted to
Leblanc. He made the cro^™ L th„T ""t" f'""'^ *° ^^^^' ^or
came down over the lineTtween th

^"^ "^ *^^ ^''"^ «° ««ch
date,, and the deput. r.^:^Zr^:z:! ^^:::,^:£

The Manitoba Election Prauds of 1896.

whoLrfS
i:?e%:!!L^r;t'eJ n"°*^ Co-ittee that

Dominion General ESorof?8%Th°p '"° •'"'"' ''"''•"^ ^^^
m Winnipeg. One Freeborn went uDfrorrr''^ '"'' ^''''^'^
he came from the chief organ.zet of ^h?T

^*""'' ''"''''« *•»«*

Boyd, the Conservative candidate in Af
'^ P"*-^" ^^'•- N.

born was sent, telegraphed to fJ "-'"''
'

*" ^^""^ ^'''^
answer: ''He was a firft class ^n i T"^^^^^^

'*"'* '''''*^"^ ''^

was thereupon employed nth?V.'^** ^''"*'"-
" ^''^eborn

was fox the express ipos of tlh'T' "°^ ^''' ^'^PVment
how to manipulate 3rin7h^°^fP"*^'-f-°-go^^^^^
helped by two men named Anderson ThT'..''"''"^^ *>« ^as
worthies went through the Provinr^T ^^"'''- '^^''' three
and it was proved by incontestab e .v ,? ''r^' constituencies,

many deputy returning officers Lou.t""!.'''"* '^'^ ""^''"^ted
of Tory ballots were substituted for Hh ^"^f,r™«« hundreds
the criminals confessed hrrluUt n'

'' ?"""'' ^'^'""^ ^t
against others, and some o'TheS'tVe^^^^^^^^^

were entered

wteTum'^r":;" IZV^Ve' ''' ^^^-^"'^ ^^-^ions
V>nservative organizer in TorSnTo tV' f"'" ''™ ^^ ^^^
"We have the printing „fT J^, "

'-t^uctions read;

number should be printed extra to^ i"''!*"'"^ " sufficient

omce. .0 b.. .he„''„„.,jr rr;s:ro S":^j;ri-



18

after the count to replace those read out ^'^"K'y
J"***^ ^J^

tineers Or the deputy returning officer can have them marked

andTolded in his pocket to slip into the box m place of an

opposition ballot if the opportunity happens^ 7^"^? both
will occur quite frequently if we have the control of botn

'""'TTget control of both scrutineers have one of our men not

a prominent one, but a supposed kicker, for instance, apply «

the oDDOsition to be put on as scrutineer inside. They are

.eneSrshort of workers and a few plausible men w.11 turn

fhe election in a close constituency. Or the man can wnte t

their headquarters for scrutineer papers if he lives in the

''""'Efforts should be made to make these methods work in

wards that give the heaviest opposition vote.

''Having control of both scrutineers, a large vote can be polled

-dead Ind' Absent voters, etc., can have their ballots marked;

there is no redress if both scrutineers were present

''A friendly constable should be present to keep the poll clear

of loungers and inquisitive people.

'^The deputy returning officer should be a reliable, sharp

and Plausible man. so that if we do not get control of the opposi-

ion^ rutineer, he can. when the counting time arnves a^w ^^h

scrutineers to take a piece o2 paper and record the vote of their

^.Indidate as he reads the ballots, which have been emptied on

r table He will then have a chance to read out wrongly so

tJat a majority can be secured for our candidate. The ballote

ri^r nut back into the box as quickly as they are read.

The extra o'ne w 11 do to fix things cor'rectly when he goes home.

"Spiled ballots can be made sure by a little doctoring

OppoSn ballots can be spoiled by the lead out of a pencd

X'd under the little finger with be-wax drawn across

opposite our candidate's name in opening the ballot

'°

If you cannot get control of opposition scrutineers have

your deputy returning officer announce that he is against you,

«n as to lead him astray if possible.

In th Citv of ^Yinnipeg, where 5,000 or 6,000 ballots would

have been sufficient in an honest election, there were 10,000

printed and yet all had been used up at two o'^^ck and th

polls had to be closed while more were rrmted. Altogether tne
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Manitoba elections furnished an instance of the boldest «nH n,n^

Further Evidence of the Tory Plot to Steal the Seats of
the Liberal Members in 1898.

The above circular of instructions points out four methodsof doing up the (4rits. as follows:
memods

(1) Slipping-ije calling out a ballot for the Tory candidate
'^hen It IS m reality marked for the Liberal.)

{2) Smtching~{i.e., stealing ballots marked for the Liberal
candidate, and putting into the ballot box ballotsmarked for the Tory candidate

)

f3) Stufrh^.e., polling votes of dead and absent menwith the connivance of both scrutineers
)

(4) Wtng(,.e by making a mark on the baUot marked

tisefis shown h^^
7^'"^ '^', ^''' ""*^"^ (SP^il*"^) ^as prac-

\Zt 1 „
by^ho very large number of rejected ballots in1896 as compared with other eloctions. Th/followinTfflhl^

IS taken from the official returns

:

following table

.Vumber of rejected ballotx in

Addington. '*" 'Srj"*

Bothwell. . .
181 32

Brant South 1^'' 37
Brockville. .

165 32
Bruce East ^^l 38
Bruce West .

^33 34
Cornwall and Stormonr ..;;;' ll^ JJDurham East ^^^ *2
Elgin East ^^ 8
Essex North ^^ 32
Gre^ North ^^ 38
Hastings East ^^5 37
Hastings Wost

"^ 25
Huron South ^4 27
Kent. . .

"0
8

Kingston. .

." 1^9 49
Lambton East ^^^ 33

Lambton West ^'^3 25

Lincoln and Niagara ,12 ^*

London. 136 47
296 47
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NumbOT of r«J»ettd bjllow lo

1888 WOO

100 23
Micidlewjx South • , -. <g
Muskoka and Parry Sound ''^

,

Norfolk North
*^J 14

Perth South
^15 25

Prince EJward
^2 22

RuMeii. ;.:;;... 93 23
Simcoe bast

^g 29
Victoria South

jg^ 28
Waterloo South j,g 22
Wellington Centre

^Jl 33
Wellington South ^^^ 50
Wentworth South

North Ontario Election of 18»6.

The candidates were Duncan Graham (Independent with

Liberal support), and John A. McGiUivray (Conservative). The

Tory returning officer declared McGiUivray elected. Mr. Gra-

ham applied for a recount of the ballots. Upon opening the

er'eloprsTt was found that the ballots had ^e- tampered with

L a most rascally way in five PO^i^g ^"^L^'^'^''^"^ "^^

'

No 4 (Thorah). No. 18 (Brechin), No. 19 (Town Hall, Mara)

Xo 27 Bracebridge), and No. 3 (Draper). In these PoUs 21

ballots marked for Graham had been extracted, and 21 marked

?;" A cSiUivray substituted therefor. The substituted ballots

were nol even 'folded, and His Honor Judge Burnham b-^ior.

whom the recount was held, expressed the opinion that they

were fraudulent. Major McGiUivray occupied the stolen sea

Tn the House for one whole session, and pocketed the sessional

indemnity, which rightly belonged to Mr. Graham.

The Lincoln Election of 1896.

In the Lincoln election of June. 1896. an organized and

dastardly attempt was made to steal the seat for J. O KyKert

from wL. Gibson, M.P., but, fortunately. Mr. Gibson's hones

majority was so much larger than his opponents anticipated that

^^'Se* returning officer, one Wm. J. Carroll. w«s a partner of

the secretary of the Conservative Association, one Potter. Uur-

Sgth election Carroll was kept intoxicated by Potter and

other Conservatives, in order to allow Potter and othe«. to

perform the duties of returning officer. The ballots used at the

'lectin were printed at the office of the St. Catharines Star, the
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Conaervative organ, and 500 extra ballots were printed and de-
posited m the safe of Potter and Carroll to be used for fraudu-
lent purposes. A number of shady characters, one of them an
ex-conyict, were appointed to act as deputy returning officers
at various points in the riding. The names of about ten of
these deputy returning officers Were not disclosed until after
midnight of the night defore the election, and only then after
repeated requests on behalf of the Liberals. About two days
^fore election these men met by appointment at the Breen
House, in St. Catharines, where they met one Quakenbush, aYankee from New York State, and were by him instructed how
to substitute Rykert ballots for those marked for Gibson, and for
that purpose were supplied by Potter, Quakenbush and McNultv
the proprietor of the hotel, with a large number of duplicate
ballots to enable them to carry out the fraud. They were each
paid a sum of money on account, with the promise of a bonus
to the man who would steal the largest number of ballots Theman who gave the instructions was imported from the United
States for the purpose. Over 300 duplicate ballots were sup-
plied to these deputy returning officers, and a large number of
them were used. (See Hansard of May 17th. 1900.)

The Parry Sound Election of 1896.

In this election the candidates were W. H. Pratt (Liberal)
Geo. McCormick (Conservative), and Col. O'Brien (McCarthy-
ite), and Mr. McCormick was declared elected. Some time after-
wards over forty ballots were discovered in one ballot box which
had been marked, some for Pratt and some for O'Brien and
plainly tampered with. In some cases the crosses' op-
posite Pratt's and O'Brien's names were erased but
done so clumsily as to be detected with the naked eye
In other cases a cross had been put opposite McCormick 's
name different in appearance to the cross originally put
on the ballot. The conspirators found that the work had
been done so clumsily that they substituted new ballots and
failed to make away with the ori«rinal ones. If over forty votes
were stolen in one polling subdivision, is it not a fair inference
that there ^-as an organized plot which resulted in the seat
being stoler, for the Tory candidate? (See Hansard of May
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The Kent Eleetioii of 1896.

The candidates were Archibald Campbell (liberal) and

William Ball (Conservative) One barren Umberto'Cj*^

hum a "dod" maker, was the returnmg officer. J^xtra Daiiow

were .uppS to some of the deputy returning officers by Lam-

bertS instructions to substitute ballots marked for BaU for

baUorproperfy marked by the voters for Campbell Notw.th-

standing the fr'aud Campbell was elected, but m a a- dect^n

his majority would have been much larger. (See Hansard, May

'^'u uTvident that the instructions issued by the Conservative

oreanizer were followed in Parry Sound, Lincoln and Kent as

well as in Manitoba. No doubt these nefarious practices were

^ut in operation by the Conservatives in many other constitu-

encies throughout the Dominion.

The London Election of 1896.

The candidates were Major Thos. Beattie (Con.) and C. S.

Hyman (Tib). The LiberaU felt that Mr Hyman had Ijen

rauduleitly deprived of his seat
^-J^^^^J^^Tltae

vigorous campaign to elect him m 1896. He received a large

Zor "y ofTe honest votes, but was again deprived of his seat

rrouKh one of the worst carnivals of corruption and fraud

ever praSd in Canada. The Returning Officer refused to

disclose th names of his deputies and the Liberals had not the

Stest idea who these men were until they appeared at the

nS on the morning of election day. The instructions contained

?n the cireuTar sent out from Conservative headquarters m

Toronto were very faithfully carried out in many of the polling

lubdivisirr There were 296 rejected ballots nearly all of

which wee '•.polled" in accordance with the instructions^

ton^ the officia' returns it would appear that this work wa^

ca^rTed on in 15 out of the 26 polling subdivisions in the city^

In 5 submissions there were no rejected ba lots whatever; m

2 subdrvisions there was only one rejected haHot m each and m

three other subdivisions there were only two, Aj««
«°f ^"^

resnectively In 11 subdivisions there were only 16 rejected

bXts a reasonable number for an intelligent electorate, but

in he other 15 subdivisions there were 280. In one subdivision,

No 8 the deputv rejected over 40 ballots marked for Hyman,
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on the excuse that he could not recognize his own initiali. Thet«,
however, were counted by the judge on the recount.

It was proven at the trial of the election petition that the
London Conservative Association had a large building fitted up
as a club room, in which were a billiard and pool room, card
rooms, smoking rooms, reading rooms, and the whole of the top
floor was ostensibly used as a gymnasium. This gymnasium,
however, was used as a lockup for Liberal voters. It was stocked
with whiskey, beer, sandwiches, crackers and cheese, etc., and
large numbers of voters who were disposed to vote for Hyman
were enticed into this plnee and invited to partake of something.
They then found themselves locked in with several "bouncers"
in charge and a guard on the door outside who could view the
scene through a little peep-hole in the door. Some of these
victims were roughly handled and one man was confined to. his
bed for several days as a result of the injuries received in trying
to escape from the place.

Men were detailed to look after the non-resident voters. A
large number were brought from Detroit, Toronto and other
places and received their railway tickets and sums of money
ranging from $4 to $10 each for their votes.

As an instance of the desperate means resorted to in order to
elect Beattie, one man was paid $20 for his vote by the chairman
of one of the Tory ward committees on the pretence of buying
from him an empty cigar box.

When the petition came on for trial over 20 men who had
been concerned in the.se disreputable practices and who had been
served with subpcenas to appear and give evidence, failed to
respond to their names when called. These men were all sent to
the United States by the Tory managers, as they could not be
depended upon to "swear the thing through." A well-known
Toronto Conservative, who had "attended to" the voters living
in Toronto, developed a sudden attack of "subpoena fever" and
went to the Southern States for his health.

Notwithstanding all this saturnalia of corruption, persona-
tion, ballot stuffing and every species of electoral fraud known
to the most expert election crooks, ^lajor beattie was only
returned by 41 majority. He, however, occupied Hyman 's seat
in the House for over 4 years.

Major Beattie i.s Tory candidate for London in the presient

election.
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Wholml* Bribery in South Ontario, and CHfMttc

Oorruptlon by » Tory «-M.P.

In the general electic.s for the Ontario Logislatore. held on

\farch l8t 1898. Mr. Whitney had an immense campaign luna,

and in c;rt«in constitueneii money flowed like water. In

Dunda., County $1,000.00 wa« «pont in one t'^7«^»»'P "l°^« ^^

elect Mr. Whitney In South Ontano, where Mr Calder de^

feateil Hon. John Dryden by 96 votes, as h gh as $15.00 and

mm each was paid for votes. That ^lecfon alone cost tho

Tories over $7,000.00. Mr. Calder was unseated mainly on

l::7uLJ^ of one Bake... who -^-^^ok to make a chang.-

,.f 20 votes for Calder in one polling suMivision for Jl^ The

,„„„ey was paid to him by one Luke, m the written order ot

w™ ^mith a Tory ex-M.P. At the trial of the petition Luke

waTmts ng. bit Sn^th had the hardihood to deny the whole

story on oa?k. The Judges, however, accepted Baker's evidence

as more credible. Subsequently, on January 9th. 1900. th»

whole matter came before the Court on the trial of the persons

Tported for bribery. Smith, tl- Tory ex-M.P., on this occasion

practically admitted the whc .ng. It was a pitiable whib.^

S uf human depravity ot. ue part o - ex-meml^r o

Parliament, a man who, in 1«J6. ^'^^ '^';^'^.^'\^^'^''''!

Agriculture in the Tory Government. Following is an extra,

from Smith's evidence, on January 9th. 1900:

Cross-examined by Mr. Lount—
, ^ t a\a

O Did you use any money during that elect ion t A. 1 did.

Q For what purpose! A. I suppose it was for buying votes

Q. How much did you use! A. I cannot tell you

About how much? A. I cannot tell.

AT never bought n man personauy
Q. Over $100.00

1

myself.

Q. Over $100.00?

Q. Over $200.00

1

Q. Over $300.00

1

Q. Over $400.00

1

Q. Over $500.00!

Q. Over $600 00!

Q. Over $700.00!

Q. Over $800.00!

Q. Over $900.00!

A.

A
A.

A.

A.

A.

Yes.

It might be

might
might

be

be.

It

It

It miffht be.

It might be.

A. It might be

A. It might be.

A. It might Ih?



Q. Ortr ll.OOO.OOt (No •nawer).

Jadge Osier—It miirht be ovpr $900.00

1

Mr. Tiount.—Over $900.00 ymi used for hiiving vote* at that
election? A. Ten, air.

Q. Then yon wore willing to nne money for buying votea at
that election? A. Tea.

Q. Did I understand yon to nay yon did not pay out any
money yonraelft A. Not to the individnni voters.

Q. How .lid yon work itT Did von select persons t«> pav it
outt A. Yes. air.

Q. Can yon tell me the persons T A. No. air.

0. Do yon decline to name the persons t A. T do.

Q. Do you know the persons hnt decline to name themt A.

0. How many persons wero fh*«re that yon gave money to?
A. I do not propose even to tell that.

Mr. Lonnt.—T ask your Lordships
Jndire Osier.—I think he may be asked that question.
Mr. Lonnt.—How many peiHona were there to whom you gave

money! A. Half a dozen.

Q. How much to each? A. I cannot tell that from memory.
Q. Have you a memorandum? A. No.

In answer to further qnf-stions witness admifted that Raker
showed him a list of money that would he required in Cedardale.
to the extent of $100.00.

Jndflv Fersnison.—Can you tell us how much more than $900
you paid? No. I can't.

Q. Can you say not as much as $1,200.00? A. It could not
be more than $1,200.00.

Q. Will you say it was not more than $1,200.00. A. No. T
cannot.

After some further questions Judge Fersruson asked : Have
you any means of saying where Bakpr trot the money that he
actually did sper 1? Does he own a hank? A. No. sir.

In the course jf the argument of Mr. Pattersoiii Counsel for
the accused, he clahned that Smith, the Tory ex-M.P., had given
his evidence in a candid manner.

Judge Osier —T should not call Mr. Smith's manner candid
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Mr. Pattenon.—He •howed no diipotitlon to fence with the

^°'^JwL Onler.-l should call it brazen; that U the word

In Bivinu judgment. JndfTP FerRiison remarked: I looK

upon the evidence of Smith a. beinR a brajen. di«t.nct atrong

denial, a denial that I do not believe, and
/ P''«'«'- t"J«^« "!

evidence of Baker an against the evidence of these other two 1

think Mr. Smith's evidence cannot be too strongly condemned

As it bears on the question, it is discredited by his admission that

he was ijuilty of this giffnntic corruption."

Judge Ferguson said further: - , «. a«ut, i.

I have some regrets that this large offender. Mr Sm th »

not before us. I have nothing to say to him. but th.t his evi-

dence is the most glaring piece of corruption I ever heard.

HOTE-The ballot box frauds of 1891 are fully dealt with

in a speech delivered by Dr. Landerkin. M.P in the House of

Commons, on Sept. 14th. 1891. (See Hansard, session of 1891).

The operations of the eang of pluffirers. personators and s-rte-

line artiHtH. who did business under the directions of the Tory

machine of 1892. are dealt with in a speech ^;l'^%';J.^y,-^^r-

Lister. M.P.. in the House of Commons, on May SOth. 1892

(See Hansard, session of 1892). This eanff operated m South

Victoria East Klein. F.ast Hastinjrs. Fast Bruce. London Fast

Simcoe. South Perth. West Northumberland. West Huron. Haldi-

mand and other constituencies.

-nirfrands of 1896 are fully dealt with by Mr. Cowan. MP.

in a speech delivered in the House of Commons on May 17th.

1900. (See Hansard, session of 1900.)

Sir John A.'t Famoui Ten Thousand Telegram.

This refers to Sir John Macdonald's and Sir Geo. E. Cartier'a

celebriJed despatches to Sir Hugh Allan, of which the following

are apecimena:
Montreal. 30 July. 1872.

Dkab Sib HuoH,-The friends of the Government will expeict

to be assisted with funds in the pending elections, and any amount

whYcHou and your company shall advance for that purpose

A.U be ;L)uped to you. A memorandum of i mediate reqmre-

menta ia below. Yours very trul;

air Hugh Allan K^V" t»
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NOW WANTED.

Sir John A. Macdonald $25,000
Hon. Mr. Langevin 15,000
Sir G. E. C

; ; 20,'000

Sir John A. (add!) io,000
Hon. Jlr. Langevin (add'l) - 10 000
Sir G. EC. (add'l) aolooo

Send Me Another Ten Thousand.

Immediate. Private.

Toronto, Aug. 26, 1872.

I must have another ten thousand. Will be the last time of
calling ; do not fail me ; answer to-day.

(Sgd.) John A. Macdonaij).

Bought in North Waterloo.

In 1898 Dr. Lackner (Conservative) was elected M.P.P. for
North Waterloo, but was subsequently unseated by the courts
for corrupt practices. In the bye-election following L. J.
Breithaupt (Liberal) was elected to represent the riding, and
he was subsequently (1899) unseated but shortly after, on
account of the methods adopted to unseat Breithaupt, he
(Breithaupt) was allowed to be elected by acclamation, though
the riding in both Dominion and Provincial affairs has, since
1896, shown a tendoney to be Conservative.

In the unseating of Lackner there was not even in the mind
of the most prejudiced a suspicion that witnesses had been bought
or tampered with in any way.

In the election trial against Breithaupt the Conservatives
had two star witnesses, whose names were Allan R. Shantz and
Albert Bossard. Shantz gave evidence of alleged ballot stuffing,
and Bossard had a weird tale of bribery and corruption. No
doubt the Judges at the trial were influenced to a certain exttut
by the stories told by these men, and now it transpires that both of
these men were bought to give their evidence, and it is proven
out of their own mouths. Here is what Shantz was forced to
admit on oath

:



(i. Wliat bargain was ultimately made as to your teUingt

A. I was to get paid for it.

Q. How muchi
A. That was left to them at the time.

Q. "Who do you mean by them?

A. IJd. Scully.

His Lordship (Meredith)—How much were you to gett

What was the bargain afterwards?

A. They deposited a cheque for $50.00

His Lordship (Osier)—Who?

A. Mr. Reid has the cheque.

Q. Whose was the cheque?
„ ^ r,

A. It was signed by Mr. J. M. Scully (President of the Con-

servative Association).

Q. (Reading from letter written by Shantz to one Lewis)—

"A-i I have been fooled so long. I must have the same in twenty-

fotr hours or I will close the deal with the others for more. I

am determined to sell." Sell whi.t? Your evidence, you mean?

A. I suppose so.

And Bossard in an affidavit since made by him voluntarily,

and read in the Legislature by :Mr. Graham. M.P.P., gives the

whole plot away. The affidavit is quite lengthy, and only ex-

tracts are given here. The whole affidavit was published in

the Toronto Globe, in March, l!>01. Among other things, Bos-

sard says:
, ,

. ^

"That John H. Stumpf, Edward Scully and other prominent

supporters of the Conservative candidate interviewed me, stat-

ing that the Conservative party would be in power and I would

have to look to them for an extension of my license, and further,

that Messrs. Randall & Rods, liquor merchants, and other in-

fluential Conservatives, controlled the License Board of Com-

missioners of said district, and could procure an extension ot

said license. In view of said circumstances I promised them

my support with the understanding that I was openly to pretend

that I was supporting the Liberal candidate. They also told

mc to try and work in with the Grit organizers and get all the

money I could out of them.
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"That my license was not extended at the expiration of the
said two months, but was subsequently granted after the said
Edward Scully paid me a visit and promised me that if I would
make a certain affidavit or declaration, which I did, as to the
election, and give evidence at the trial, he would, through promi-
nent friends, get an extension of my license, which was carried
out.

"That the said Stumpf and Scully individually saw me on
different occasions about my evidence and instructed me that
they had been told by Mr. W. D. McPherson what I had to say.... They also told me the story Sheutz, Bohl, Wancki and
Polomski were going to swear to at the trial, and that if I told
the same story and ask for the protection of the Court, I w uld
.-ut get into any trouble, and that if I did not I would bf ined
and sent to jail.

"That in consideration of my making the affidavit and giving
evidence at the trial as before mentioned, the said Edward Scully
and William Reade, apparently acting on behalf of the peti-
tioner and the Conservative organization of North Waterloo,
further agreed to pay me the sum of $100. A day or two after-
wards the said Scully came to me and said: '$100 is too much.
We will help you in your business and will see that you get
your license, and you ought to be satisfied with $50.' I said:
'AH right.' Scully then showed me a bank cheque for $50,
signed by the proper officers of the Conservative Association, as
I was informed. Scully then said: 'This cheque will be placed
in the hands of Stumpf and held by him until after the election
trial, when it will be handed over to you.'

"A few days afterwards I saw Stumpf. when he said: 'You
need some clothes, and you better take that $50 out with me in
clothing.' Between the election trial and the 1st of April of
the present year (1900) I received clothing from the said
Stumpf to the extent of $50, which has been paid for by said
Stumpf as agreed."

Stumpf adopted an ingenious method to pay Bossard. He
gave him clothes on three different occasions and had Bossard
sign notes as follows: July loth, 1899, for $19.00; January 8th
1900, for $22.25; and Jlarch 3rd, 1900, for $17.00—a total of
$58.25. Stumpf discounted these notes at th? Bank of Com-
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merce, at Berlin, and paid them hinuielf when t^^ ^«;»^^« ,f2
These notes were produced in the Legislature by Mr. Grahan..

MPP
Their Friend Pritchett.

The Tories laid great stress on statements eontained in an

affidavit procured from the notorious J. G. Pritchett and at

fiS asked the Government to prosecute this man What are

thVfacS? A warrant had been sworn out on behalf of the

Conservative party and Pritchett tied to Detroit to evad._ arres

Mr. Samuel Barker. M.P., actin, as an organizer for tne Con

servative party, went to Detroit, and along wit^,^!//''"'
fr

a Con Irvative lawyer of Windsor, and Tory candidate or North

Essex in this election, procured the affidavit Pritchett has

Twor^ that the affidavit was made by him on the condition that

thev would withdraw the warrant and protect him.

They had he warrant with them. It had been given to them

bv the Conservative constable, in whose hands it had been placed,

.n illegal f not criminal, bargain had been made by these

-ntSen iith Pritchett. That was the method adopted t

frocurTpnt:. H's affidavit which, being sworn before some

Eal in Detroit r. ^ored it impossible to prosecute him for

pS y ?he state., ats contained in the affidavit were con-

tradicted at the investigation, and the man was characterised

by the judges as a "self-convicted liar.

Imported Experts in 1902.

From the lavish way in which cheques ^or^ff« «";^ t;;;^

large amounts were sent out from the -n ral fund to T^ y

workers in the Ontario Provmcial election of 1902, the eviduit

nurpose of the Opposition was to get into power by any means

Sorer. Thefsought the aid of aliens an^ fo-gners, nu-

Dorting them specially from New \ork and Buffalo.

These methods amount to almost acts of treason for the>

fthe Tories) secured the services of foreigners to aul them ...

their work of securing certain votes in each const.tue.icy. 0>.

Sirfour. page two. of the ^fail and ^"^^':!'^^^:^^^_
A , T.,1,7 itifVi 1002 is the statement that torty expert at

SWI weretou^M to Toronto from New York and Buffalo.

rrassynTd to co.fst.tue„cies" from the I'-incial headnuart^^^^

of the Conservatives. The evident purp<«e of thi. ^vas clear.



These men could commit all sorts of election wrongs and once
over m their own country could not be reached by our laws.

, Jr.''* u**"*^
^*P"*^ "^^"^ '° ^^"^""^ <l""°g the election con-

test but when they were wanted to give evidence at the trial
of the petition against the return of the Conservative candidate
they were not on hand, even though they had been properly
served with subpoenas. It was announced in Court that these
aliens were in Buffalo, and, of course, the Court was powerless.

During the progress of the election trial in North York Mr
T. H. Lennox, M.P.P. for North York, swore as follows:

thertt
^'^ ^°" ^^""^ " ''""^'^ "* gentlemen from Buffalo over

T .C^J^^^^
^^""^ " ''""P^® °^ distinguished men from Buffalo

1 think.

Q. How did they come to be there?
A. They were sent up there by Mr. E. ,-. O.sler. I think At

least, he was instrumental.

Buffalo Experts Again.

During the bye-election in North Grey on January 7th, 1903one of these Buffalo experts named Mulloy, who had been brought
into Ontario by the Torie. during the general elections of 1902
appeared in Owen Sound in North Grey and called upon leading
Liberal workers, claiming that he had been sent there to workon behelf of Mr. MacKay, the Liberal candidate, and demanded
money. One gentleman upon whom he called, Mr. R. McMurchv
inimediately went and saw Mr. William (now Judge) Hatton'who was Mr. MacKay's financial agent, and Mr. Hatton replied
that the Liberals wanted jo such characters in the riding and
gave orders that he was to be immediately deported, which was
done. Mulloy then went to Dr. Hough, a leading Liberal in
Wiarton, in the adjoining riding of North Bruce, and repre-
sented to him that he had been sent from Owen Sound to act
in conjunction with him in buying votes in North r^ey and
asked Dr Hough for money. Dr. Hough refused to have anv-
thing to do with him and Mulloy left for Toronto to see his Tory
employers. The whole thing was a vile plot to entrap the NorthGrey Liberals, but fortunately it failed.
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B. L. Borden's Organixer.

fin^^jiuu, North 0„,, North Perth and North Nortoiy^

interviewed by Alexander smix ,

^^^ ^^^ ^^^

davit for the Liberals explaining their ^"^"^"t^.^^^^Rvtn

•rnhetu? W^h"^ »M-he -bS^P~. ^ Se



to swear to their concocted story without reward? It ,•« ,;^-

Purchased Evidence in North York

electa^^Sm/t'hu' "'
'I"k V "' "" ^'"«'' ^»-'

the mon^v and then r..fii«,.rl f-. .
^"r eviaence. Hisey took

evidence. ' l^nJ^X-lZt llrS I^TL^/"' ',?'
gone to Detroit a few dara i«,f„„ he tri„l .,,1/ P'J"'""^

S":.r;;""
"'" """*" """-' ""'a:X"'oT.,':

"We Want to be Prepared for the Next."

ront°v P^™""*^'""^
^'**''" ^'"^ ^'^^ Secretary of "the WellandCounty Conservative Association to a Tory heeler-

AZT!}i\ '^'
•

'" P'"'' "P ^'''"^ "*^^^- t'-icksm Toronto -

7th'^l'9oIr*w'?f°«°
*^°'"^ '^^°*'''°^ ^^'^ held on November

oTSr^TorrrdSf-V^r ^^^^-^^ - ^^ iey^rbeh'ai?
to do the Tory Prnotii ^f''\^-'''

""Po^-ted from Toronto

the secretary of 2 P
'™''^- "-"^ ^''^'•*' ™'**^^ ^^^^ direction oflue secretary ot the Conservat ve Associafinn fn.. »,„

:«er.t\i:e.r.
°'

;rre\sr;S"'^'r ^^^^
and every,h,og in ,h„, li„: , ok .1 nparltlvXt'"'"?'.'

seiretary of the Tory Aswmtion writes as follows- "ro„ ,Z
it" LT"X' "T"

""" '"""< >»" -""J •ii^ ™w h

S^^nS ireu r':^' r'Lt*-,?;:,;?;:'
"*"

r. -^ *'

e^X^'TTs:^t-?^i3• -'
t4" -"*

Ireland."
Eddie-you do the same with

afterM'^n"" •

"'' ""''^^'^'' "" Xny.mlH.,. 10th. 1000. three davsafter the Domm.on g-roral election. Tho ..-.winn ^f M, S^r
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man had created a vacancy in the Ontario I^8"\«t"«' ^^^.'^^'y'-

Action had to be held. That is what the secretary ™««° ^^^^^

he saiS: "You might be able to pick up some new tncks m

Toronto. We want to be prepared for the next.

Following is a copy of the letter

:

Welland County

Liberal-Conservative

Association.

C. R. T. Sawle, Secretary.

Welland, Ont., November 10, 1900.

H. A. Rose, Esq.,

Toronto.

Dear Hugh,—

Your note received. I have settled with both your claimants

and eTer;tt„g ;„ that line is OK. In a few days the finances

w!S be straightened out and I will have Col. Raymond forward

^""^r:x;:rtrhave another contest on here in a few months

and then we will require your assistance again, and if I have anj -

?hine ?o do with it the tow.i end will be managed differently

'Se pointed out to the local big guns that ^o"^ are th. only

man of the bunch who secured your men and did it with less

'""TSdiJ'S Z^t:^'^ nSi a little story which leads

.netfbelir Ireland might have >>een playing tWo^^^^^^^^

ThP Mai claims he told him everything. I think 1 will leei

Eddie and see if he wwill give up any of his guts to me. You

•^'"l';rn;;'re;^Sli- -f every^ Con. in/own who voted

for us You might be able to pick up some new tricks in Toronto.

We want to be prepared for the next.

Yours truly,

G. R- T. Sawi-e.
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The Nect of Traitors.

The year 1896 will go down in history as the year in which
the Tory misrule received its quietus in Canada. It was in
the early days of that year that the dissensions and bickerings
which had been going on for months in the Tory Government
culminated in the strike of the "Seven Bolters," which was
aptly described by the then P:-emier, Sir Mackenzie Bowell, as
the blackest piece of political treachery on record."
The Ministers of the Crown, the sworn advisers of Her

Majesty in Canada, had been quarrelling amongst themselves
for months. It is a well-known principle of Constitutional
Government that the Ministers of the Crown must be in per-
fect harmony one with another, and when they fail to agree
a change in advisers is imperative. Yet here was a crowd of
men. some of whom were not on speaking terms, and one of
v.'hom accused another of them of writing anonymous letters
vilifying his character, holding on to office week after week
and month after month for the sake of gain. And all the time
the Canadian public were being told by the.sc same men "that
never was the Cabinet more united than it is at the present
time." ^

In the latter days of 1895 the Tory Government realized
that Its days were numbered, and that at the first opportunity
the people of Canada would drive them from otfice The gang
of professional politicians who had been living on the Cana
dian public, men who could not earn a livelihood in any other
way, and some of whom were actually members of the Cabinet
became alarmed and realized that something desperate must
be done. They had to face the electors in a number of bye-
elections, and a conspiracy was hatched to make a scapegoat
of the Premier, Sir Mackenzie Bowell. who was considered bv
them as a stubborn old nuisance." Sir Charles Tupper whowas then High Commissioner in London, was secretly sent forHe could be relied upon, at any rate, to let the boodlers and
grafters dip into the public chest at their own sweet will The
general elections must take place immediately after the then
coming session, and an immense eampair i fund had to be pro-
vided if th. gang were to have a ghost or a chance to hang on
to office. In answer to the secret invitation of the conspira-

)
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e ected ^ «^"^^^,^,^
'"

^ted a Liberal by over 500 majority^

the ^tl»„""^*""YF Poster Hon Sir C. Hibbert Tupper,

r' ATdX' iL Dt Mf^ague. Hon. John Haggart,

"on W B Ivi and Hon. John P. Wood sent in their res.gna-

Hon. "'•^•^*"''
, , fLnvprnment. On January 7th the

tions as members of l^^^^.y""™'"^^
gj^ A. P. Caron, the

announcement was made - the Ilouse b> S.r A^^^^
^ ^^^^

temporary leader of the Q"^^*^"™^"' '°.
„ ^^ pogter who

fully-prepared statement -^^^^^ S^Ue^ " Tht^^
seemed to be tl- -j- of the Seven BoKe^^-^^.^^^

^^ ^^^^

'T ornolitTcstth^Zt cold-blooded utterance ever made
sides of politics as in. m

newspaper referred to

, in a British Parliament^ ^l! Adolphe CarTmoved that the

Foster - * J^-i^^,
^/^'^^.et btVhe Opposition objected,

House adjourn for t^^o
^^J^f

• ^"'
j/'^^^, ^hen that Sir

and the House adjourned
^J^^^-

^^^^ J^^^jng in A NEST

^;%tln^i' t tru'er^Tvords were ever uttered by a

3i^e-:^^t.:ur^^-«^^^
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whT'TJ-^"*
'''?'"' *" '^""''" ''"^^ <»'«'•'' ^a- a danger of the

MBjeatys advisere" were in dancer of beina In«f o«,i /u

by which Tapper, father, took the place of Tapper «on in heCabinet, and the "cats came back " Sir rhV.:! ^
evontaall^ .acceeded to the leadership oMhe pa u' onlJ^^;

inTh^lf"" u ^l''"'
" '^'^ "-on'hs'ater iC- hT. ^ ?

Keen MrfL ^an'V?""*"^"; *° ''' S--'*^ "'Mr Mc-a.een M.P. for Cape Breton, a safe Tor>' Riding for which qjrCharles was afterwards elected.
^"^

Thus ended for the time being one of the most diabolien'conspiracies ever hatched. No wonder a Ipprlin^ ti
referred to them as "a gang of ^T-^h^o t

"
"?ebe7"XHon. George Ealas Foster is to-day Mr Borden's Lf itenant and chief apostle of parity, and in the event of - i

^''""

wnat a sorry plight for a political party to be in !

The Colchester Carnival of Corruption.

that Province. Therefore, when Colchester be;anie vacant anda bye-election was held in November 1007 th.
'«'"' jaeant and

they would break the ''solid erghtJn' an ^.^^^^^^
lieutenant from Nova Scotia to^aLS him i.f li, amoai^n'f

"

pumy in politics. They succeeded in electi V r John Stanfield as a supporter of Mr. Borden Rnt )„m'7
''"»"" ^^fns-.

ments in the criminal court, vZre one \ R n^.^J''"'
'^^^^P"
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After tho el.rtioM whs over the Halifax Herald, the chief

Hord..n orpar. in N<.va S.-.tia, pro-laimed in Woo'lrjjd letterH

on the front paR.' : "Tho .lenn. straight, nmnly Liberals of

"
htster hav. spukon loud and -loar. They net the seal of

their stern eondenination .... the i...moral.ty, the debaueherj

and the corruption of the m.-.i n.aH.i..erading as Liberals.

A K Bayne, a friend and supporter of Mr. K. L. Burden «

a n.ining ..perator at Five Islands i., Col.-hester County. At his

HI he was defended by Mr. B. A. Hitehie, K.C. a leading

Cmservative lawyer and friend. a..d forn.er law partner of Mr

Borden A great mass of dan.ni.ig ev.den.e was brought out

,,,t only a small .-orner of the eurtain was lifted
j;^;"^ *; ^^j;

..oMst.nt interruptions and obje.-t.ons of Mr. R't'^h.e. Enough

was iTo.jght o.it, howevr. to show the nasty methods by which

ihe Torns ele-ted « suppo.ter of Mr. Borden .n h.s punty

. ainpaign. „ ,,

Alexander M.d)onald, of Five Islands, swore that tollowing a

l„n,. c.o..ve.-sntion with Bayne on the eve of the election, .n which

l..th indulged in praise.s of Stansfield, he was give., s.x ...• more

,>ottIes of whiskey' and *15 by Bay..e.
^^^^'^^rTX.^Zl

lu.d approached bin, and other w.t..es,ses, had treated them and

..n.lcavored to ascertain what their evidence was l.kely to be^

\.nonjr 'b'>-^c pns..nt wbe„ the treating was done was Frank

StansHeld, brother of J..bn Stansfield. M.P Mr Bayne sug-

...sted to witness that he shonld try to forget he had reee.vcd the

monev and whiskey from Bayne. Witness also said that Bayne

«ske.i hi.n to come before the n.agistrate and say he had received

„o money or liquor. Witness swore, on cross-examinat.on that

Bavne asked him at the Stanley House. Truro, to go before

the" Stipendiary Magi.st.-atc and swear "I had got no money or

inm.

Whiskey in Cases.

R„bie Fal.-oner. of Economy, swore h.; got thirty dollars in

..ash a...l a case of flasks of whiskey. lie got the money in he

Sta..ley Hotel and li.iuor at the back of the hotel. "He wanted

,„e to work for Stansfield. "said the witness. "I said I would

be with him in the election."

•What did Bayne sayt"
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"He K«id I V/&H to mf the liquor for th- »'I.'<tion, and to put
the mitnvy down into my trouHors po.ktrt. I did not use the
money for eh'ttion purpoHt-H. Senator .Ma.-Kny '.s mn, VV. P. Mac-
Kay, was with Mr. Hnyn.' just befor.' I jjot the liquor. I got
more liquor from tinyw at Fiv.. hlands fho night before the elec-
tion. I Kot Hix or ciuht Hasks and a lonj? bottlf, the latter for
niywlf. The rest wns to bo hiindtd out. I saw Bayne fill up
A prrip of whiskey for my broth.-r. Suther Kal.-oner. in the hotel
Bayn.' asked one of us if w ...1 a grip. He told me to go out
and get one. I did so and n. filled both. We got two caaea of
whi.sk-y. He a.sked me if I muld handle any whiskey for Mr
Stanley do vn th.-re. I said, ' Yes,' and he gave it to me. Bayne
knew I had not been a supporter of Stansfleld's party hitherto."

Whiikey in Oripi.

Suther Falconer swore that he met Bayne and W. P. MacKay,
son of Senator MaeKay, on nomination day and got a grip full
of booze. He -,t altogether twenty-four "bottles that day, and
got iih It half a dozen bottles from Bayne at Five Island's the
day bt^.ore the eleetion.

.McDonald, the first witne.s.s. was in the room when Suther
Falconer got his liquor. There was quite a crowd in the Stanley
Hotel, where he got the •vh-': y

J. Bayne JForrison swore that ho saw Bayne on nomination
day, and he said he thought there wa.s some money for the dis-
trict of Five Islands. He got some money from Bayne at the
Stanley Hotel, Truro. There was a roll of dollars, probab'v
twenty. "He told me." saul the witness, "to make the best aso
of It I could in Stansfield's interests. I treated the boys every
time they came along. / got a letter from Mr. Hall, the secretary,
and agent of the Conservative parlij here, to Mr. Bayne I
burnt that letter. It told me to .all on .Mr. Bavne. I called on
Mr. Bayne because it was reported he uas 'the man behind the
gun.'

Whiskey in Flasks.

"I got a number oF fia.sks from Bayne at Five Islands on the
day (.f the election, or the day before. I also got twenty-five
dollars (.n election day Bayne .-alK-.i „if into a ruoa, of Cor-



wf- H.tel aud b8nd.'d it to me dune up in » parcel with »n

^\..tnd a Id it. He .pparently had faith that I could

puTl them in or he would not have given me the do««h.

Whiikej in Barrvli.

George Corbeit. hotelkeeper at Five WandB, 8»t t^«
^•'J'*;;

.f U^ZLn Halifax addre...! to Mr. Bay»;/"f^
»-.\^f,7^

o hi.\«tel in Kiv. Island. AdviscHl to «eMrJ^^^^^^

Zr
.

'rRiS anxrol to aee bin,. Howard Wells got drinks

tm th
- ugTnthe bam," talked it over with Mr^ RUch.e.

Somas MoJrison got six flasks and two bottles from Bayne.

Let it be noted'^that most of these witnesses held seances with

Mr Rul? after being subpoe.med and before appearing in the

eiurt J hn J^mieson' mail driver, swore he got $5 and a drmk

from Bayne to vote for Stansfield. The nu.uey was taken trom a

a ge roU Leph Jamieson, brother of the above a^o swore

to getting $5 from Bayne about election day or the n.ght before.

Asked to Forget.

«^?'^^5 -^
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cases, marked "choice tomatoes," which he was under the im-

finnTy,"'? T'V^r'' "^ •^"^"^«"- ^e found on examina-
tion of his books thai they had come addressed J. II. Sullivanrhere was no such person in Truro, so far as he knew He

°«t know .0 whom they were delivered, as no one hads.gned lor them No such package had ever come for such a

Sal'lfi R "^'.^ ,!''^ '''"" "^^^^^ "tomatoes" came from

p^ir /' '^'^ ^^ ^'^ ^ ""•^"g Conservative.
f. W. I.inton, agent for the Canadian Express Comnanvwho was called for a similar purpose as the last witnSs cou dnot remember anything, and when asked to refresh his memory

nZi'' . r^ '!"* ^'' ^^^ ^^^" instructed by his superior
officers not to produce his books. He was excused and orderedto refresh his memory and return to give evidence

of -LtlT' ?'° ''^"'^' '"'"' ^' ^^^ d«l'^«^«d ten cases

Truro HeZT '" '7" '^''"""°^°^ Conservative firms iniruro. He met a man on the street, whom he never saw beforenor since who told him what to do with the "tomatoes^'
;yyray, driver for the Canadian P^xpress Compauvswore that boxes of what he took to be . hiskey marked-choice tomatoes" had come i„ on November 26, and had beendelivered by him, not to one to whom they were addressed butto prominent Conservatives in Truro on Ltructtons of a

^^
he met on the street whom he never saw before or since.

Whiskey in Valises.

Ralph Aston swore that his father, a prominent Conserva-

tookTo'^the St« f ' n^"'" 'r ^^^'^^ Stanfield, whTh hetook to the Stanley House, the Conservative headquarters

ffls'witrA TrT'V"''' ^"'^ ^^'^ <i-ve off'trpi":

Scotia.
Davidson, Conservative organizer for Nova

Tory Organizer Implicated.

George A. Hall, Secretary of the Conservative organization
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It developed on further examination that he had been in

Carr's company all that afternoon, and drovo from London-

derry to Acadia Mines with him. Asked whether he had been

at the express office and signed for any parcel that day, or

had given any parcel to Carr, he "could not remember" or

lad no recollection." He held Carr's horse for a considerable

ime at Acadia Mines, while Carr disappeared in the darkness,

.;ut what he did he could not tell.

"Choice Tomatoes."

P W Linton, agent of the Canadian Express Company, was

"recalled, and after great diflficulty and in the face of repeated

and strenuous objections by Mr. Ritchie, K.C., he told of the

consignment of ten cases of rum, marked "choice tomatoes,

which had been received during the election, addressed to a

fictitious person, "R. II. Anderson," and delivered to two

prominent Tory workers, Messrs. Ross and Mackenzie.

These "choice tomatoes" were featured in The Halifax

Herald during the campaign as being sent into Colchester by

the Liberals. This evidence finally exploded its false story,

and exposed one of the many pieces of trickery resorted to by

Mr. Stanfield's supporters.

Comniitted for Trial.

Magistrate Crowe briefly reviewed the evidence stating

that certain witnesses swore they were given sums of money

and other considerations in Mr. Stanfield's interest, and that

this evidence was uncontradicted. He said that anyone who

had heard the evidence could come to no other conclusion, and

that the rum and money given were distributed by Bayne out

of a general fund, and that it was of no consequence where

Bayne got the money and the rum if it was used for the pur-

pose charged against him. He further stated that there was

considerable evidence that the money was not the property of

Bayne alone. By the testimony of witnesses it came from a

source outside this man altogether, and if furnished m this

way it must strengthen the belief that it was for the purpose

of corrupting the electors. There was no other course open

but to commit the defendant for trial under the charges made

against him.
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WUikey and Money Galore.

On the first day of the inquiry ten witnesses who were ex-
amined swore that they had received from Bayne, the universal
provider and active friend and worker <'>r John Stansfie'd in
the district of Five Islands, $100 in money and 96 bottles of
rum. This was an average per man of $16.66 in money and
sixteen bottles of rum. In the whole county Stansfield received
2,586 votes. If the average was maintained Stansfield 's elec-
tion required 5.172 gallons of rum (putting the bottles all as
pints, although some favored individuals undoubtedly got those
of greater capacity), and about $43,100 in money

AH this evidence has been brought out with the greatest
difficulty. Bayne and his friends were adroit enough to corral
the witnesses for the prosecution on the eve of the trial conduct
them to Baj-ne's '"throne room" in the Stanley Hotel, treat
them lavishly with liquor, and then turn them over to W B A
Ritchie, K.C., who had a talk with them about their evidence"A full and complete report of the evidence and other court
proceedings m connection with this case will be found in a
36-page pamphlet, entitled,

"Tory Hypocrisy Unmasked," .

"The True Story of the 'Choice Tomatoes.' "

FRAUD, POBOEEY, PERSONATION AND PERJURY.
Crimea by Wholesale Committed in the Compilation of the

North Winnipeg Voters' Lists in 1907,

On May 6th, 1908, D. W. Bole, M.P., read affidavits in the
House of Commons, showing that hundreds of bogus naturaliza-
tion papers were issued. Six men worked for twelve hours in
the Conservative Club Booms in Winnipeg turning out these
fraudulent documents. One T. Jestremski signed affidavits until
exhausted, when others came to his rescue. The applications
were passed through the County Court fraudulently, being dated
back. Affidavits were read charging W. H. Hastings, Conserva-
tive organizer for Manitoba, with knowledge of the fraud (See
Hansard, May 6th, 1908.)

'

5



Disreputable, Corrupt and

Scandalous

While the Tories are howling about corruption and making

vague charges of graft, none of which they have been able to

prove it will be well to direct the attention of the public to

a few' of the scandul; is and corrupt transactions which took

place under Tory rule, and which have been proven beyond

dispute.

The Eykcrt Timber Limit Scandal

Which a ^b-committee of the House ««™P;^"\;/j^'""r'Jf
of Conservatives, was forced by

-^f^^t" Rvtrt Conse^ative
creditable corrupt and scandulous." Mr. Rykert, Umservative

MP for iincZ purchased from the Conse^t^ve Governmeo

certain valuable timber limits T - a tntie of $2 500. An agent

re.amined the limits,.—^ .^^J^^rs^rf^^^^^^
a false report, upon which the limits

^^^\f ?/" ^ ^
'

^,5^

which the beneficiary pathetically described
f^

%
^""J^f^^^"'^

old age." In the correspond nee there occurred the foUo^jng

oL». "T have Boweli working for me. John A. s son.

« Tl..r.Wr' ••We d.*™ «.mething for the trouble «e

I^te^ TrToH^:^L?:»'n rft'er^ard, „o.inated tW, »..e

J. C. Rykert as their standard bearer.
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The McOreevy-Langevin Scandal.

Cost to coiitractora of work built $2,184,259
Cost to the country 3,138,234
Contractors' profits, a great part of

which went into the Tory campaign
fund 953,975

Loss to the country, after deducting fair

profits 700,000

The Quebec Harbor Works consisted of a dredging contract
in the wet basin and tidal dock, a graving dock, a cross-wall
contract, and a south wall contract.

The construction of those works and the expenditure of the
moneys were to be under the control and upon the responsibility
of the Minister of Public Works alone. The Quebec Harbor
Commission, the majority of whose members were appointed by
the Government, had something to do with the works, but all

the money came from the Dominion Government. The Govern-
ment had to do with the plans and the letting and approval of
the contracts, and, to quote the words of the Act, "and any
moneys to be hereafter paid to the Quebec Harbor Commis-
sioners shall be so paid from time to time as the work proceeds
upon the report of the Jliuister of Public Works." The Depart-
ment let the contracts and the works were carried to completion
under the immediate supervision of the Minister and his officials.

These works were all constructed by the firm of Larkin.
Connolly & Co., consisting of Patrick Larkin, N. K. ContioUy.
Michael Connolly. Owen E. .Murphy. Robert H. McGreevy was
given an interest in the profits of the firm in nearly every one
of these contracts for the purpose of procuring the interest of

his brother, the lion. Thomas .McGreevy. then Tory M.P. for

Quebec West, and through him of Sir Hector Latigevin, then
Minister of Public Works. Up to 1889, Robert McGreevy was
confidential agent for his brother Thomas and the manager of his

private affairs. Thomas McGreevy and Sir Hector Langevin
had been for a life-time intimate friends, and while in Ottawa
during the session, representing Quebec West in the House of

Commons, Thomas JIcGreevy lived with Sir Hector, to whom he
had loaned $10,000 and never asked it back.
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Between 1878 and 1891, inclusive, this firm received in public

money $3,138,234, for which they did $2,000,000 worth of work.

They expended in bribery and corruption $170,447 according

to their own books. Robert McGreevy, who contributed no capital

to the firm, received as his share of the profits $187,800. The

Hon. Thomas McGreevy received very large suras of money from

the firm, and, accord ig to the sworn evidence. Sir Hector Lange-

vin received $10,000.

Thomas McGreevy admitted receiving $60,000, but the accoun-

tants who examined the books of the firm showed that at least

$130,000 passed into the hands of Thomas McGreevy.

Thomas McGreevy explained that he received this vast sum

of money in his capacity as treasurer for the Conservative party

in the district of Quebec, but he refused to say to whom he had

given the money, and when threatened with punishment for con-

tempt of Parliament if he did not tell, skipped out.

Evidence showed that out of this fund Thomas ]\IcGreevy paid

$25,000 to subsidize the personal newspaper organ of the Minister

of Public Works, a paper in which Sir Hector had the controlling

interest.

As near as could be judged from the evidence, Thomas Mc-

Greevy handled $170,000 out of the money stolen from the people,

and according to his own evidence as well as that of others, he

disbursed it for the benefit of the Conservative party in the

elections.

Facts Connected with the Dredging Contract.

In this contract Robert McGreevy was given an interest of

30 per cent. It was to terminate in 1884, but was continued until

near the end of 1880. There was a lot of underhand work in pro-

curing the contract, such as the putting of a bogus tender in the

name of Bcaueage, and the freezing out of contractor Ashwith,

and the dismissal of Kinniple and Morris, the engineers, who

were replaced by engineers chosen by IMcGreevy, namely by Per-

ley and Boyd, both engineers in the Public Works Department.

Facts Connected with the Dredging of the Wet Basin.

In the winter of 1886-7 Thomas McGreevy made an arrange-

ment with Larkin, Connolly & Co., whereby the firm undertook

to pay him $25,000 on condition that he would obtain for them

the sum of 35 cents a yard for the dredging of 800,000 cubic
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Pacts Connected with the Contract for the Levis Graving Dock

J
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graviug dock at Levis, on condition that he should receive all

over $50,000 of the contract price. The Government gave them
the contract and they paid McGreevy $22,000. The profit on
this contract wa» $125,000. The Minister consented to pay the

firm $74,000 for work they were already bound by their previous

contract' to do, and further paid them $65,000 as alleged dam-
ages, and claims for extras to the amount of $50,000 were
allowed by the Minister.

The Cross-Wall Contract.

Thomas McGreevy 's brother, Robert, had a 30 per cent, inter-

est in this work and Thomas had a large interest in his brother's

finances, because his brother owed him large sums of money
and was paying him back out of the profits of these contracts.

The amount paid under this contract was $832,448. Four days
after this contract was signed the favored firm of Larkin,

Connolly & Co. subscribed $1,000 to the Sir Hector Langevin
testimonial fund. There were five tenders for the work, and
of these Larkin, Connolly & Co. were the highest, but two others

of the tenders were also put in by Larkin, Connolly & Co., one

in the name of Gallagher and another in the name of Beaucage.

The tenders were so manipulated, with the connivance of the

Department, that the contract was awarded to Larkin, Connolly

& Co.. This is accounted for by the fact that the treasurer of

the Conservative funds in the Quebec district received $25,000
from Larkin, Connolly & Co., as the consideration of their

securing the contract. The direct loss to the treasury by the

passing over of the tender of Peters and Moore, who were the

lowest, ^'.a $70,000. In addition to that, Larkin, Connolly &
Co. were paid $22,000 to which they were not entitled.

Contract for the Completion of the Esquimalt Dock.

Robert McGreevy was given on interest of twenty per cent, of

the profits in this work, which was the completion of the graving

dock at Esquimalt, British Columbia. Again there was a lot

of hocus-pocus work about the tenders. The evidence showed
that the Minister of Public Works brought his personal infiuence

to bear upon Starrs and O'Hanly, the lowest tenderers for this

work, to induce them to withdraw, and Mr. Starrs swore that

Sir Hri'tor threw bo many obstacles in his way that he did



finally withdraw. On the same day the Minister hurried to
council with a report awarding the contract to Larkin, Connolly
& Co., whose tender was $30,000 higher th- n that of Starrs uiid
O'Hanly, the figures being $374,559 and ,!338,9i5. No sooner
had Larkin, Connolly & Co. got the contract than they wanted
a change in the length of the dock, the substitutioa of granite
for sandstone, a heavier coursing of stone, and a reduction of
the $50,000 which it was agreed they should pay for the plant
belonging to the Government already on the work. There was
a strict agreement that no reduction of this $50,000 was to be
made, but after a while they were allowed a rebate of $20,000.
The firm offered Thomas JleGreevy $50,000 to have the dock
lengthened 100 feet and Sir Hector Langevin sent a report to
council advising that the dock should be lengthened 100 feet,
and that an Imperial contribution should be applied for, but
as the Imperial Government refused the scheme was dropped.

To show how the Minister and contractors worked together
in all these matters, the substitution of granite for sandstone
is perhaps the best illustration. N. K. Connolly, who was on the
work in British Columbia, thought it would be' to their interests
to have the graving dock built of granite instead of sandstone,
as provided in the contract. Shortly afterward Michael Connolly
wrote that the granite was terribly hard and the quarry 180
miles distant, and strongly advised against any such change.
Meantime Nicholas Connolly's request had been complied with
in the Department, chief engineer Pei-ley reporting to the Min-
ister in favor of changing from sandstone to granite at an extra
cost of $45,000. An Order-in-Council authorizing the change
was prepared by the Minister, but then came the news that the
firm had changed its mind and did not want the change, and the
Order-in-Council was torn up. The request of the contractors
that the coursing should be three feet thick instead of one foot
was granted on condition that it was to cost nothing extra, but
the contractors were afterwards allowed $45,000 for it. The
contractors wanted three-foot masonry instead of one foot be-
cause they had discovered a quarry in the locality furnishing
three-foot stone and the change was therefore in their own
interest, but notwithstanding this the change was used to steal
another $40,000 from the public in order that the Government
should get back a portion of it to be used for party purposes
in the elections

}
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The cost of the dock when completed was $581,841, Iwiiig
$207,168 more than the amount of the tender. The contractors'
profits in this coniract amounted to $240,979, in addition to
$27,000 paid in "donations," namely, bribery and corruption.

Oovenunent Corruption.

The reason why the Government willingly paid so much
money to these contractors is shown by the evidence. An extract
from the books of the firm showed a charge against the Estjuiraalt
dock of $35,000 in seven different mysterious sums. This money
was paid corruptly in return for the favors shown to the firm
by the Government. The sum of $5,000 was given for the
Three Rivers election. Three Rivers was the constituency repre-
sented by Sir Hector Langeviri, the Minister of Public Works.
The Conservative managers relied largely on the contributions
of Larkin, Connolly & Co. Mr. Valin, then a member of Parlia-
ment, gave this evidence at the investigation:

"I applied again to Mr. McGreevy and to Mr. Murphy. Mr.
Murphy told me: 'We have placed all that is necessary in Mr.
McGreevy 's hands and we have advised him to help you
especially; apply to him and you will get some.' Then, having
applied to Mr. .McGreevy, he said to me the elections in the
County of Quebec are costing heavily. The Ministers are cost-
ing us very heavily and I have no money to give you. Caron
is always after me and I cannot satisfy him with money. We
have Sir Hector at Three Rivers and, besides, other counties."

It will, therefore, be seen that j\lr. Thomas I\IcGreevy was
simply the ciistodian of these corruption funds, and that the
members of the Dominion Cabinet were, with others, the bene-
ficiaries.

Sir Hector Langevin gave an order on Mr. McGreevy, Feb-
ruary 2. 1887, for $600 to be spent in Bellechasse ; for $200 for
the County of Portneuf ; for $.300 on one occasion and $750 on
another for Champlain election ; for $500 for Quebec East ; for
$500 for L 'Islet; for $500 for Drummond and Arthabaska; for
$200 for Beauce and for $200 for Lotbiniere.

An official list of expenditures in the campaign of 1887 shows
that $112,700 was drawn from the reptile fund and expended
over a score of Quebec constituencies according to a preconcerted
arrangement between Sir Hector Langevin, Sir Adolphe Caron



Hon Thomas MoGreevy. A list of the counties was drawnup and the sum that was to be spent in each was placed opposite.
This arrangement is referred to by Sir Hector Langevin in a
letter to Mr. McGreevy, dated February 18. in which the Min-
ister says: 'You know that iMontplaisir (the candidate in.Ohampam) was to receive altogether $2,0(M) for his leiral ex-
penses. *

Larkin, ConnoUy & Co. warv kept busy receiving money from
the Dominion Government with one hand and giving a portion
of It back to Thoma.s McGreevy with the other hand.

The expenditure in Quebec Comity was $18,500; in. Three
Rivers. $16800; Quehe.. West, $8,000. Large sums were paid
to the subsidized prcsw.

Langevin's Clear Ouilt.

Sir Hector Langevin was Mr. McGreevy 's political chief and

l^oi"""'''^
*^** '^^'- ^'^^^''^^'vy squeezed between $150 000

and $200,000 out of these contractors as contributions to the fund
ot the Conservative party, of which he was the custodian, and it
was paid out on orders signed by Sir Hector Langevin himself
including $35,000 which Mr. McGreevy said he paid for Le
Monde, Sir Hector's own personal newspaper organ (Sir Hector
thought that the sum paid was only $28,000) . Thomas McGreevy
admitted that he applied to the firm for the money which Sir
Hector Langevin admits he asked Thomas ilcGreevy for.

In the light of these facts can anyone believe that the Min-
ister of Public Works did not know all about the manner of
raising this money, or that he did not lend his influence as a
Minister, and his colleagues also, to accomplish their ends? The
contractors could only pay out these vast sums to the treasurer
of the Conservative party on condition that the Conservative
Government allow them to make that much extra out of the con-
tracts, and something besides for themselves. Thus you find
bogus claims set up and allowed, extraordinarj- prices paid for
ordinary work and changes made from time to time in the con-
tracts with the result of transferring large sums of the public
money from the Dominion treasury into the pockets of the
contractors.

One of the members of the firm of Larkin, ConnoUy & Co
Owen B. Murphy, iwope that be went to the hoxm of theW

J
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ister of Public Works and laid a little parcel upon the table
before him as a prt'sent, that the Minister t(M>k the parcel and
put it into a drawer of the table, that nothing was said further
and Murphy went out. That little pareel contained $10,000,
Murphy swore.

Sir Hector Langevin accepted ijilO.OOO from Mr. McOreevy,
according to the evidence, and he accepted a testimonial of
$22,000 in cash, subscribed for the most part by contractors hav-
ing dealings with the Department. The milking of contracts
and the s<(ueczing of contractors were reduced to an art
by the Tory Government, and Sir Hector Langevin was acting
for the Government in which he held the second position, and
the Government got the benefit of it all.

The Curran Bridge Steal.

In the session of 1892 Parliament voted $170,000, this being
the despartmental esfinmte of cost, for a new bridge over the
Lachine canal, at Wellington str(>et. in the City of Montreal,
and to renew the Grand Trunk bridge alongside. This work
was proceeded with during the winter of 1802-93. The chief
engineer and other orticers of t'le Department and the Minister
himself visited the works in the course of construction.

The whole work was under the immediate supervision of the
Department at Ottawa, and was done by day labor instead of
by contract, and it will be seen that as much money could be
stolen from the public under the administration of the old Tory
Government under the day labor system as under the contract
system.

The outside quantity of timber and lumber which could have
been used in the work was 2.594.000 feet b.m., and there was
charged and paid for ;{.613,000 feet, or a steal of over a million
feet, representing at least $15,000 for that item.

The stone-cutting, which could have been done for $6,000.
amounted to $40,000. Tpon the Wellington street bridge (com-
monly called the Curran bridge, after the Hon. J. J. Curran.
MP., of Montreal), the cost of stone-hutting by piece work
should have been about $3,000 ; the amount paid by the Govern-
ment was $16,715. On the Grand Trunk bridge, what would
have cost by piece work some $3,000, cost the Government
$23,180.
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c.>«t ?r. L"^
'*"" ^'''"'^' ^'•""'^ '"•"'•'" ''hoi.ld have

hv th
'^' *" *^"' '""""''^*' "^ ^''" ••<"»nussio„eP« appointedby the Department to etu|ui,., i„t„ these matters) $56,(KK) The

pay-list for the labor alone on this suhslructure. without taking
nit.. ttee.,unt material, plant ..,• false works, amount..! toi>140 00()The ehief enfr.n.M.r of the (Jrand Trunk Railway. Mr E V
»annuf.,rd, swore thiit th.. (Jn.nd Trunk were ready to buildhe HU .structure of the Ornn.l Trunk bridge, ami on the 28th
)ecemb..r. m2. th,. willingness of the railway eo„.p«ny to buildthe suhstruetun- for .$:i5,.KK) was sent to the Department of
RadH^ays and Canals, As early as OetoU-r. 1892, the Grand
1 runk wrote the dej.artn.ent, giving their ."stimate of the estot the bridge they were willing to build as $35,000 for th.- sub-
structure. The estimate f.,r the supers! rm-ture. about which
there never was any dispute, was $.15,000, making the total cost

i7< Mon r"'r
"sUmated by the Grand Trunk chief engineer.

$70.(t00 Inder Mr. Haggart's ,Iir(>etion it cost $i:«;00O f..r
labor alon»'.

Mr. Ilannafoni sw..re that in his estimate of $70,000 he had

The original ..stimat,. of ..„st for th.. substructures of both
bridges, allowing for an LS-foot navigation, was $122 000 This
u as afterwards i.^Teas-d to a 2().foot ,.avigat„m. for' which the
total cost was .stimated at $160,000. The actual cost of the
w..rk was $430,325. of which $;{W,000 was a.tually paid ov.t a

S$s;;;oi5:
"•^""''^^- " '" ""^-^"'••^ ^^^-v^^rtnu.., „rat

il5n^r,oo''*l"'f:u
""? "" '""" '^'''" ^'"•""^h.d tl„. labor made

$150,000 out ot th.. job. This was Mr. E. St. I.ouis. a ,-...,sin ,.f
h.' H.m. Mr. Ouimet. Minister of Publi,- W ,•!«. aiul a |.r, ameir

( onservative eo„lra..for of .Mnntmil. II, lalsiH.-d tlw .,«> -lints'
whR-h contam.-d th.. Mam,.s „f n.en who w,.,-.. n.v.-r ,.m»l«^.^=
01, the w,.rks at all, and there w.-re fiv- rimes a. manv ^m -m-
pl<.v-,.d as was n,'ces.sary. It was rt.porte.l .,„ th,. Hr .lart-fl.
lf<.).i. that 1.300 men were employed on the vu-i. M- r^s L„ui*
explained to the Parliamentary ....mmittc > i,,<. -sti^rat ,ii, Mj,^
he had to make a good many politi.'al subs,..-: .io,^^ .aid n^r ttuK
reason had to make large pn.fits. lie ,i^-rn >Hi u,s Ihiob,
vouchers and other documents, becaus,. thcr we~ s^.m- ^tr^e
he did not wish to inake publi,;.
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If waH sworn to that Mr. LouIh had stated that ha unve
$l,5r)0 to Mr. Einard, th« Ipjtal parliicr of tho Hon. Mr. Ouiinet,
for tlie Vaudreuil election. That evidence will he found at

page 344 of the blue book. 18!»4.

The whole evidence in this atrocious scandal showed that
the loss of hundreds of thousands of dollars was due to the
ncKleet. extravaRance and iiiismanagement of the Department
of Railway and THnals. presided dver h\ lion, John Ha^Kart.
under whose nose all this stealitij; took place. There was no
(lovernmeiil time-keeper, no proper checks on what being
done; the only man who was exerci.sinjf any efficient super-
vision l)ein>r dismissed at the liep;ininK. This man was Dr.
Desbarats, an enpineer. The overseer of the canal, Mr.
Edward Kennedy, who was appointed on the recommendation
of the Hon. .1. J. Curran, >r.P,. was bossing the job, and he
and Mr. St. Fiouis had vcrythiii;,' their own way. It was be-
cause Mr. Kennedy did no! wish the interferenee n{ Mr.
Desbarats that the latter was dismissed by the Government.

Hir Richard ('arturitrht imtved a vote of censure on the
department for its conduct of this work; but Mr. ITagtrart
nsisfed it and every i of his followers su[iported him. The
division, lis! appears oti pajre <i.')20 of the Commons llins.inl
of 1894.

A commission was appointed to report on this eunti-iii'i

;nid they presented ,i special r.'porl to the OovcrnnienI in
l^ftl. Bcliw ;ire sonie ot^ the facts stated:—

Samples of Curran Bridge Wages, etc., Paid by Government.

^A a da\ for foreman.

$6 a day for foreman for nif^ht or overtime.

$8 a day for fort lan on Sunday.
$12 a day for foreman on Sunday, over-time.

$5 a day for team.

$10 a day for team on Sunday.
$2.50 a day for derrick.

$3.7.5 a day for derrick for over-time.

$7,.50 a day for derrick for over-time on Sunday.
St. Louis puts on all the men he wishes and sets paid

for them.

2,000 men on the works al one time.
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Large numbers idle.

No Government time-keeper.

No regular count.

No Government foreman.

No Government supervision.

No Government record of men or materials.

No Government classification of labor.

Unskilled labor paid for as (.killed labor.

No public tenders for timber.

Inferior timber supplied.

Carter's delivery tickets for lumber, etc., missing.

No checks as to quality of timber and lumber supplied.

Large quantities missing.

New timber burnt as firewood, carted away, stolen, etc.

Government teams haul lumber that contractor was to

deliver.

$39,806.04 paid for $6,000 worth of stone cutting.

$16,715 paid for $3,000 worth of stone cutting.

Stone hauled by team 20 miles along railway, running

from quarry to works.

Government warned all along of frauds but allow them
to continue.

Pays bills as they come in.

When work completed Government issue commission to

investigate.

Pending investigation, Government pays St. Louis balance

of $105,000 for wages that Chief Engineer discredited and
would not certify to.

Commission unanimously report incompetence, extrava-

gance and fraud.

People's money lost.

No one held responsible.

THE CARON SCANDAL

In 1892 Mr. J. D. Ed^ar, the member for West Ontario

charged Sir Adolphe Caron with being a corrupt member of the

Administration and asked for a Committee of the House to in-

vestigate the charges which Mr. Edgar formulated and declared

upon his responsibility as a member of Parliament to be true.

i
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The Government first refused point blank to allow any investiga-

tion, on the ground that the charges were not specific, but upon
Mr. Dalton McCarthy, who was then a supporter of the Govern-
ment, and others demanding that something should be done, the

Goverumeni, proposed to appoint a royal commission to investi-

gate the charges, first altering the charges to suit the accused.

Mr. Edgar had ten paragraphs in his indictment, the truth of
which he was willing to leave to the judgment of a Committee of
the House upon which there should be a Government majority.
The Government in refusing an investigation by the House were
condemned by their own act. The text of the charges can be seen
in the Votes and Proceedings of the House of Commons of 6th
April and 4th May, 1892. The Lake St. John Railway is a road
in the vicinity of Quebec, which received upwards of one million
of dollars as subsidies from the Dominion Parliament. The com-
pany which undertook to build the road made a contract with
another company, known as the Construction Company, by which
the Construction Company became the contractor for the railway
and entitled to receive every dollar of Dominion subsidies voted
by Parliament. Sir Adolphe Caron was a shareholder of the Con-
struction Company and a director. Subsequently the Construc-
tion ('ompaiiy sub-let or as.signed the work they had undertaken
to Mr. H. J. Beemer, who undertook to build the railway on con-

sideration that the Construction Company transferred to him all

unpaid subsidies and gave their bond to use every effort to pro-
cure for Mr. Beemer additional subsidies. The company which
thus pledged itself had Sir Adolphe Caron for a director, and,
moreover, when the Construction Company made the contract
with Mr. Beemer, Sir Adolphe Caron was present in person.
The sum already spent on the road was put down at $450,000,
which Mr. Beemer agreed to pay back to the Construction Com-
pany out of the bonds and subsidies. In addition to that he
agreed to pay Sir Adolphe Caron and his fellow directors and
shareholders of the Construction Company $11,000 per annum
for office expenses. The whole subscribed stock of the Construc-
tion Company was $94,250, so that what Mr. Beemer was to pay
them amounted to more than 450 per cent, upon their entire

subscribed capital. Subsequently the company applied for sub-
sidies at Ottawa and with Sir Adolphe Caron 's assistance got
them. In other words, the Minister sat in the Cabinet and voted
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a million dollars of subsidies to a road in which he was financiaUv

nT^Q ^'"fT;V'^ ^°°^*^''««° Company r'S^Hon^ J. G^ Ross who had large private transaction with MrBeemer, who assigned all the subsidies to which the Lake sJJohn Railway was entitled to Mr. Ross as security for moneys

siSr^^^..^"^'
'^"^ ^^- ^'' "«« <^«"Wy interested in theSsubsidi^both past and future; interested in Mr Beemer^

financial succe« as the sub-contractorM the road, and interestedm the profite of the Construction Company of whi;h he wl nlfdent Mr. Ross and his brother held more than half of ThTendr^stock of the Construction Company, and the eXce was tS
$4 rocSSlelh 'r"T f"^r ''"'^ *^^ '•-'^ compJt'd ?he$450 0000 due the Construction Company would have been lost

iTl8^ ^'-f
therefore, would have on this one item ha^e£jna.OOO Mr. Beeman had not a cent's worth of interest in

side^r
'
"''° '" --ngement with Mr. rLJ iTco^

Caron's Confession.

nn ^°f^V^/'«
circumstances the general elections of 1887 cameon and what took place shortly before they were held is shownin the evidence of Sir Adolphe Caron him'self, given before theRoyal Commission of 1892

:

> 8 vcu oeiore tne

T nlii^^^^^r''^'*'' ^ '''''"''*^ '«™« fun'is for the campaign and

woufd not be «t", .V"*
''"'^ '^'^ ''^••««-">' «" a-'unUwS

and $10,000 on the first day. Prom his office I drove up to the

nvrst,wt H-
'''"•

''^''r^-^'
« "'*°- examined'ii tW

Hon Sir H..f T
""'' ''°' '^ " '^^'"™'**^^ '">™P«««'J «f three,

T;, ,, r*"*"
T^ngevin and myself being two of the threeand Mn McGreevy being the third and the treasurer for the Pur

f^o? Mr Rosr'Tf-. V"'' *^^ ^"^"^^ -^'^^ I had recededfrom Mr Ross, and handed it personally to Mr McGreevv whoreceived it from me. He gave me a receipt for th amount Indm a period of time extending, probably, over seven orSt da"or ten days possibly, I drew out at different periods. The dS:
Rl'";h"

•\"'' *" the $25,000 which had been promised by MrRoss through me, I placed in the hands of Mr McGreev/ as Ihad done the first instalment, and got receipts from Hm T^eseamounts were distributed after a discussion between the memSeJ^



53

of that committee, Sir Hector Langevin, myself and Mr. Mc-
Greevy. They were distributed for what we considered to be
legitimate and indispensable expenses of the various counties
which we were looking after in the district of Quebec.

Oro88 Corruption.

Although the prosecutor before the royal commission was an
appointee of the accused, and, of course, avoided asking ugly
questions, Sir Adolphe Caron himself had to admit the receipt of
$25,000 from the beneficiaries of the Lake St. John Railway. The
fund, which reached at least $100,000 for the district, was dis-
tributed in part upon the order of Sir Adolphe Caron himself.
The Minister was running in Quebec county at that time and his
own orders on the fund for Quebec country alone amounted to
$5,100. Sir Adolpi-'" Caron did not go to the Minister of Finance
at Ottawa and get $5,000 from the public exchequer direct and
squander it in corruption but what he did do was to hand large
sums of the public money to the promoters of the Lake St. John
Railway and then receive from those who were to be benefited by
the Government subsidies, a portion of those subsidies for election
purposes, handing the money in bank notes to Thomas McGreevy
and then drawing it out again upon orders signed by himself.
It was a clear case of steal, but Sir Adolphe Caron rather gloried
in the fact that he was stealing for the party and not for him-
self. Speaking in the House of Commons Jul.- 3rd, 1894, Sir
AdolpLe said:

"I take the full responsibility for my action and for assisting
my friends, because it was necessary to assist them under the
peculiar conditions existing in the district of Quebec, which I was
looking after. ... I am prepared to stand or fall by what I
have done, and ^considering that I have helped my friends to the
extent that I have considered legitimate, I say "that under the
same circumstances what I did on that occasion I would do again
to-morrow, in order to help my friends."

'

Although $18,500 was spent to elect Sir Adolphe Caron in
Quebec county, (according to the official list of expenditures
from the fund). Sir Adolphe Caron 's agent on that occasion, in
publishing the return of expenses rec|uircd by the Statutes swore
that the personal expenses of the candirlato amounted to $58, and
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that ^e experwea of his agent amounted to $846.46; or a total
expenditure for the county of $904.46. These were the legitimate
expenses, the "legal" expenses so often referred to in the orders
on the reptile fund.

Sir Adolphe Caron stated that the fund was merely used to
pay the legal expenses of poor candidates. Dr. Landry was the
Conservative candidate in Montmagny and a man of wealth-
nevertheless he received $1,000 from the fund.

Caron gave many other orders, photographs of which were
produced in Parliament by Mr. Edgar, as well as those of some
ordere signed by Sir Hector Langevin. A copy of the official
iwt of the expenditure in the Quebec district made from the fundm the campaign of 1887 can be seen on page 16 of the Votes and

r^^T.*"*^ '" Hansard of June 15, 1892. The total sum
was $112,700.

Caroc Whitewashed.
Failing to get a select committee and failing to carry a

niotion protesting against the substitution of a new set of
charges drawn up by the accused or his colleagues, the Liberals
while not recognizing the royal commission, used the evidence
given before it, partial as it was, and challenged a verdict
from the House upon it March 22, 1893, in tho followinp tionm amendment to the motion to go into supply.

'' That Mr. Speaker do not leave the chair, but tha. it be
declared that in the opinion of this House the evidence taken
by the royal commission appointed last session to enquire into
certain charges made against the Hon. A, P. Oaron, K C M G
M.P., which was reported to the Government on the 24th
November last and is now laid before us, established facts
which should have prevented the subsequent appointment of

•;'^ ;.,
-^ *° ^^ *° adviser of the Crown and also renders

mv-^
improper that he should continue to hold such office

"
This grave censure upon a member of the Government was

endorsed and supported by several prominent Conservatives
incluuing Mr. Calvin. Conservative M.P. for Frontenac, Mr.'
^^l^'^^^^^^C^rthty, Dr. Weldon. M.P. for Albert, N.B.. and
Col. O Bnen. M.P.. each of whom by this vote declared Sir
Adolphe Caron unfit to be a Cabinet Minister. Nevertheless.
Mr. Bowell m forming his new cabinet in December. 1894 took
Sir Adolphe Caron into his Government.



SECTION " B " SCANDAL.

On September 23, 1891, Mr. Lister formulated charges on
the flpor of Parliament against the Hon. John G. Haggart,
Minister of Railways and Canals. He charged that in the year
1897 Messrs. Alexander Manning. Alexander Shields,. J. J
Macdonald, Alexander Macdonald, James Isbester and Pettr
McLaren entered into a contract with the Government for the
construction of a portion of the C. P. R. between Port Arthur
and Rat Portage, known as Section " B.," and that Mr.
Haggart, who, during the whole period of the contract, was a
member of the House of Commons, was beneficially interested
in the profit of the contract which accrued to the share standing
in the name of Peter McLaren and received large sums out
of the profits and otherwise derived direct and substantial
pecuniary benefits from the contract; and that the contractors
during the progress of the work made large contributions for
political purposes with the knowledge and a.ssent of Mr.
Haggart which were charged against the profits of the firm,
and that unsettled matters relative to the contract, which were
in dispute between the firm and the Government were at that
time, or subsequently, settled in favor of the contractors. Mr.
Lister moved for a select committee to examine into these
charges and report to the House. The committee named by
Mr. Lister in his motion were four Conservatives and three
Liberals, or seven in all, having the right to vote.

Mr Haggart denied the truth of the charges, as had Mr.
Rykert, and Mr. Greevy and Mr. Turcotte, and Sir Adolphe
Caron, and others who wore subsequently shown to have no
defence to the respective charges brought against them, and
two of whom were expelled from the House in consequence of
the charges being established which they at first denied. Mr.
Haggart stated that he had arranged the partnership between
Mr. McLaren and the other partners for the purpose of con-
structing section " H.." and overlooked the carrying on of the
contract and the final settlement, but said he got no large sumr
from McLaren.

In the debate which followed, the Government practically
took the stand that it was nothing wrong for public contractors
to pay back to e party composing the Government, tens of
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paralleled in the history of purchases. I am quite clear that

thia property haa been purchased for three times its value,

beyond all question."

Thia was the language not of an opponent but of a supporter

of the Government, and one -who knew the city of St. John
and the property in question.

It was generally understood in St. John thaf part of the

money paid over by the Government, ostensibly for thia land,

« IS applied in payment of election expenses in St. John.

The Tay Canal.

In 1882, when a vote for $50,000 was taken for the con-

struction of this canal, which is a ditch running from the

Bideau Canal six miles to the town of Perth, the home of the

Hon. John Haggart, the Minister of Railways and Canals, said

that the total cost of the work, exclusive of the cost of the land

required, would be $132,660. In 1883 another vote was taken

in Parliament, when Sir Charles Tupper stated that the canal

would cost $240,000. In that year to justify the vote, and to

reply to the protest of the Liberals, Mr. Haggart promised that

smelting works would be erected at Perth, which would require

this canal. In 1884 another $100,000 was a.sked. and very little

more was heard of the work until the session of ]^-^<. when an

additional vote of $55,000 was asked. The Government then

stated that the expend' ture to date had been $256,000, and that

$55,000 would complete the work. In the session of 1888 there

was voted an additional sum of $78,000, and in reply to some
Opposition criticism the Government said that the work had

been finished. The demand for money for "Haggart's Ditch'"

nevertheless continued, and in 1889 Parliament was aaked for

a further sum of $25,000 "to complete the work." At that

time the total cost was $364,951, or $124,951 more than Sir

Charles Tupper told the House in 1883 the total cost would be.

In 1890 a further sum was asked of $11,000 for the Tay Canal,

and the then Minister of Railways and Canals was again ques-

tioned by Sir Richard Cartwright, who made the following sar-.

castic remark:
"This, I understand, is really a useful work; it drains the

county of Perth."

To which Sir John Macdonald made the following reply

:
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The Uttle Bapldi Lock—Original Estimate of Ooit, $H000;
Actual Ooft, $800,000.

In the month of December, 1886. two months before the

general election of 1887, the Public WorkR Department entered

into a contract with Mr. W. J. Poupore. Conservative M.P.P.
for Pontiac County, Quebco. for th»> construction of a lock and
dam at Littlo Rapids, on the Lievre river, a stream running
throuffh Ottawa county, and discharging into the Ottawa river

at Buckingham, twenty miles below Ottawa city. The idea, it

is said, was to facilitate the shipment of phosphates; though,
as a matter of fact, thi^ effect was to largely increase the cost

of phosphates reaching the railway at Buckingham station.

Work was not begun until the latter half of 1887. and dragged
along until April. 1892. so that it extended over two general

elections. After the contract was let. the Department of Public
Works extended the work sp a.s to include a guide-wall, a

retaining-wall. a cross-wall, and a landing wharf at the lower
end. All this additional work was to let to Mr. Poupore with-

out tender, and at greatly increased prices over and above the

original contract.

The original estimate for the work was $44,000. but when
the original contract was completed the final estimate made by
the department amounted to $76,680. exclusive of the lock
gates, which were built of Michigan pine by the Government
at a cost of about $10,000. Mr. Poupore. however, received

$260,000, and claimed for extras $61,000. The actual cost of the

work was about $300,000. for which the original ftstimatfl was
$44,000. and the final estimate $76,000.

The Galops Channel: Estimate $300,000; Expenditure, $900,000.

What is known as the Galops Rapids scandal consists of a

scandalous waste of public money in the dredging of a channel
on the north side of the Galops Rapids, opposite the electoral

district of Dundas. St. Lawrence River. A channel known as
the South Channel already existed. The contract for this work
was awarded in 1879, when Sir Charles Tupper was Minister of
Railways and Canals, to Denis O'Brien for the sum of $239,750
for a fourteen-foot navigation. Mr. O'Brien withdrawing, the
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$1,000 each, made this extraordinary advance of $60,000 to

Davia and Sona a peculiarly annpicioua tranaaction.

The whole acheme of the enlargement of the Cornwall canal
was changed in 1893, by which Davis and Sons obtained with-

out tender a new contract worth $384,000 for building what is

known as the Sheik's Island Dam. The object of this dam
was to convert the north branch of the river into a navigable
channel by throwing dams across it at the h<>ad and foot of
Sheik's Islajd, forming a deep water basin about three mileH
long. This basin would form a navigation past sections 6 and 7

of the Cornwall canal, which were under contract to Messrs.
Gilbert and Son of Montreal, who had already been paid $125,-

000, and who were afterwards paid a further sum of $30,000
aa damages for the loss of their contract, because sections 6 and
7 were rendered useless by the adoption of the Sheik's Island
Dam scheme.

The engineer of the department, the late Mr. John Page,
fully considered the scheme of erecting dama at this

point, when the enlargement of the canal was under-
taken, and reported in February, 1889, against the scheme, and
it was decided not to adopt it.

When this policy was reversed by Mr. Ilaggart for reasons
best known to himself, and when the beneficiaries of the new
policy to the extent of the profits on $384,000, were Messn.
Davis and Sons it is not hard to smell a rat. To give )Iessrs.

Davis this new work it was necessary to break the law, which
provided that no contract was to be given without tenders being
called for. >

According to the admissions officially made the public lost

$150,000 by the cancelling of the contract to Messrs. Gilbert
& Sona.

A resolution introduced by Messrs. Laurier in the House
July 3, 1894, reciting the facts and censuring the Government
for their course was voted down, every Conservative present
voting against it.

The St. Charles Branch.

The St. Charles branch of the Intercolonial Railway bran-
ches oflf from the Intercolonial road to Point Levis, a distance

of fourteen mileH When the Government entered upon the pro-
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The Great Interrogation

Laurier or Borden ?

Wbioh of the Two Ohisftaini ii the Tru* Ezemplu* of PoUtioal

Rectitade ?

A great iuterrugatiuu is bt-forts the electorate of Canada. It

is, "Shall the Laurier admiaiatration, uuder which Canada has
prospered and progressed to a degree scarce dreamed of by the

most ardent patriot twelve years ago, be sustained T Or would
it be in the best interests of the people for the destinies of the
Dominion to be transferred to the guidance of Mr. R. L, Borden
and bis chief lieutenants, Messrs. FosIit, Fowler, and political

aspirants of the type of Bennett, Lefurgey and Rufus Popet"
The answer means much to every Canadian. The question is

many sided. Sir Wilfrid Laurier in placing it before the peo-
ple of the Dominion, has submitted the proposition that it

should be answered upon a basis of evidence and the merits of
policies. The leader of the Conservative party declines to meet
this challenge ot" the Dominion Premier. With a declaration of
personal purity, Mr. Borden prefers that the Federal election be
narrowed down to a scandal campaign. He desires that policies

of commercial and industrial development, transportation expan-
sion, postal facilities extension, be shelved and the purity issue to

All the whole of the political stage,

Foster Exposed.

It is an axiom of law that witnesses should be of good reputa-

tion. And in the sphere of statesmanship the political leader

who essays to achieve the confidence of the country must be able

to vouch for the integrity of his associates. How far Mr. Borden

is in a position to thus acquit himself is indicated by the records

of the Ro. ' Commission appointed by the Dominion Parlia-

mmmm •.Wr *--r7^(M^



ment to mvestigate the aifaira of the life insurance companies
holding federal charters. The revelations were as surprising as
they were far-reaching. Revelation followed revelation until
the community at large looked with amazement upon the expos-
ures of trust violated, and men who had occupied the highest
positions in the gift of the people confessing, when denial was
impossible, that they had extorted or knowingly accepted rake-
oft and commissions which would not have been available had
not they been either active or passive participants in the high
game of graft played with masterly skill. These experts in self-

aggrandizement are seeking the limelight as preachers of recti-

tude. What does the record showf
Mr. Geo. E. Foster, who is Mr. Borden's standard-bearer in

North Toronto, held the high position of trust as manager of the
Union Trust Company. It was a shock for those who regarded
Mr. Foster as an apostle of purity and rectitude, to read in the
report of the Insurance Commission that "certain officials, high
in office, for their own benefit in the transaction in which they
were personally interested, have made use, have been permitted
to make use, of a very large amount of the moneys of the com-
pany (Union Trust Company)."

Nipped This Plot.

Again the record discloses (see evidence of Mr. Stevenson,
report of Insurance Commission, Vol. 3) that Mr. Stevenson,
Supreme Counselor of the Independent Order of Foresters,
called into Foster's office and met Wilson, McGillivray. and
Foster. They proposed buying some Quebec timber lands,
and that Stevenson should join them. It involved several
hundred thousand dollars. They said McCormick and Irwin,
who were practical lumbermen and men of substance, would go
in with Fowler to an extent of 49 per cent., borrowing the money
from the Union Trust Company, and suggested that they should
go into it for 51 per cent.

Stevenson said he had not the means, and they suggested
borrowing it from the Union Trust Company. To this Stevenson
demurred, on the ground that directors of a trust company were
trustees for the funds, and had no right to use them for their
own profit; that they would have to apply for the loan, and as
dirpotors pass upon it. M that the matter dropped."



Again the record shows that the Union Trust Company had

50,000 acres of Northwest land. The Western Settlers' Land

Company was organized by Dr. Montague, manager, intending

to go into a colonization scheme. As a result of the agitation

against subsidiary companies, and on the advice of Stevenson,

the Union Trust Company turned back upon this scheme, and

the lands were taken over by a syndicate of Hamilton men, or-

ganized by Dr. Montague at $6.75 per acre, giving their note to

the company for $100,000 as a guarantee. They then became

the Mutual Settlers' Land Company. The stock of the Union

Trust Company for $100000 was cancelled, and the Hamilton

men became shareholders for $100,000, the Union Trust Com-
pany finally lending them that amount on their notes secured

by their stock. The Union Trust Company made a profit of

$117,000 on this operation.

The Royal Commission report, vol. 3, gives the formal re-

cords of a transaction of a most lucrative character for those

who put it through. The records are inscribed :

—

Manipulates Foresters' Funds.

In April, 1903, Mr. Rufus H. Pope, ex-M.P., and Mr. Geo.

W. Fowler, M.P., obtained an option from the Canadian Pacific

Railway for the purchase of 200,000 acres of land in the North-

west at $3.50 per acre.

Subsequently Lieut.-Col. John A. McGillivray, Supreme

Secretary of the I. O. F., Hon. Geo. E. Poster, Managing

Director of the Union Trust Company, and Mr. Matthew Wilson,

K.C., Director and Solicitor for the Union Trust Company,

appear to have become possessed of a one-half interest in the

option, which was transferred by the original owners, Messrs.

Pope and Fowler, to the Union Trust Company at an advance

of $1.00 per acre.

"Ultimately the option and the lands it covered were turned

over to the New Ontario Farm and Town Sites Company, a

concern which had no liabilities, and, as Mr. Shepley suggested,

no property either, in the organization of which Messrs. Foster,

McGillivray and Wilson were active. This was done under an

agreement which requirfid thnt thoro would he an advanw in



price, which would net to those three gentlemen paid-up stock

in the company to the amount of $95,000. The whole purchase
price o£ the lands was paid by the New Ontario Farm and Town
Sites Company by the transfer to the Union Trust Company of

one thousand shares of stock of the company.

By a change of name this company became the Qreat West
Land Company, which is controlled by the Union Trust Com-
pany and holds the lands in question.

Mr. Poster positively refused to produce the stock book
showing who composed the company and the number of shares
held by eaeh individual.

"The transaction involved an investment of the funds of the

T. O. P. amounting to some $958,000.

The Union Trust Company does not figure in the documents
as having handled the lands, the conveyance having been made
direct from Messrs. Pope and Fowler to the land fompany.

The evidence disclosed that at one time the I. O. P., in

investments made through the Union Trust Company and other

subsidiary companies, held 400.000 acres of Northwest lands,

involving an investment of $2,000,000.

Mr. Stevenson, in his evidence before the Commission, testi-

fied that the Union Trust Company, of which Mr. Diorge B.

Poster was manager, advanced to Messrs. Pope and Fowler
$337,000, and agreed to advance them another half a million

dollars to pay upon certain lands. When Mr. Stevenson asked

that the account be closed he was assured that this would be
done within si.^ months. A year and a half elapsed without the

loan being repaid. Then Mr. Stevenson insisted that the Union
Trust Company be given a first claim on the land.

BIr. Foster's Stock Book.

During the investigation of th** various transactions in land

by the Great West Land Company, an insppotion of the stock

book of the company (the production of which was so strenu-

ously resisted by the Hon. O. E. Foster) disclosed the fact that

Mr. Foster and his colleagues, Lieut.-Col. McGillivray and Mr.
Matthew Wilson, had an interest in the second purfhase of land
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which was bought from Pope and Fowler to make up the short-

age in acreage turned over under the original option for 200,000

acres.

It also transpired that when turning over the lands they

selected under their option Messrs. Pope and Fowler retained

6,878 acres of selected lands, which they apparently still retain.

Mr. Poster testified that he supposed that the Great West Land
Company were getting all the lands selected under the option.

As managing director of the Union Trust Company he had been

authorized to accept an offer which, as vice-president of the

Eastern and Western Land Company, he had made to sell lands

in the West at an advance of 50 cents per acre on the price paid

for them.

Foster Could See no Difference.

Mr. Foster said he could not see that there was any conflict

between interests of vendor and purchaser, both of whom he
represented.

Another revelation was that JMr. Fowler, according to a docu-

ment produced, had held 350 out of 650 shares in the Eamloops
Lumber Con pany, standing in his name, in trust, for Hon. (Jeo.

E. Foster. Mr. Foster's interest in these shares was not disclosed

until the investigation commenced, and he had since endorsed
the stock over to the Union Trust Company.

Mr. Shepley read from the minutes of the Great West Land
Company of July 9, 1903, to show that when the purchase of the

8,640 acres was recommended no mention was made of the fact

that the syndicate of Messrs. Wilson, McGillivray and Foster

were interested in the transaction personally.

"Did you think." he queried, "it was necessary or desirable

that the report should have stated that you were an intermediate

purchaser having a personal interest in the property f"

Mr. Foster
—"I am not sure of that."

"Does not that view appeal to youf"

Mr. Foster
—'

' I think it would probably have been better to

have mentioned it. I have also an impression that it was thor-

oughly understood by the members of the Board.
'

'

wm



He admitted that Messrs. Wilson, McQillivray and himself

were the Executive Board having control of the administration

of the lands.

I

Admits Doal Poiition.

"Did you observe the emphatic nature of the dual position

that the very gentlemen who were endowed with executive power
in respect to the afiFairs of the Great West Land Company were
the very geqtlemen who were interested in the transaction t

"

Mr. Foster—"Yes, that was true; the dual position is plain

and unmistakable."

"Do you say that Sir John Boyd knew of itt"

"I can't say that."

1

How Mr. Boblin Unloaded.

Premier Roblin, of Manitoba, at one time was loaded up with
Swan River lauds. Mr. Roblin sent Mr. Pritchard, his private

secretary, to Toronto to sell them to Mr. Foster's company with
an oflFer of $5,000 commisHiun for Mr. Foster.

Mr. Pritchard asked Mr. Foster to take a generous view of the

matter, meaning that Mr. Roblin found it hard to carry the land.

Afterwards Mr. Foster wrote, offering $5 per acre iiet, with 25
tents per acre commission.

Mr. Roblin dictated the letter of the 28th of December
accepting Mr. Foster's offer.

Witness thought as he was on vacation when he tried to sell

the lands to Mr. Foster, he was not acting as private secretary,

and that he should have a commission himself.

Before he saw Mr. Foster, witness said, Mr. Roblin had
instructed him to sell these lands at $5 per acre.

Whenever witness started to talk to him afterwards about his

commission Mr. Roblin became too busy to talk to him about it.

Witness told Mr. Roblin that he had been willing to sell to Mr.

Hamilton at $5 per acre, out of which he would have to pay 25

cents commission, but Mr. Roblin refused tu discuss the matter,

and said that witness went down to Toronto as his private sec:

retary.

fl



Borden and Lefnrgy.

Mr. Lefurgy's evidence before the Commission of how he

became interested in Northwest lands has a decidedly spicy

flavor at this time in its bearing on Mr. Borden's campaign of

vituperation. Mr. Lefurgy recounted that the idea of the

C. P. R. land option originated while he was on a tour of the

West with Mr. Borden and a large party of other Conservatives.

Mr. Lefurgy was asked before the Commission if he desired to

modify his evidence in relation to Mr. Borden, which he gave in

the suit between Mr. Peuchen, Mr. Bennett and himself. Mr.

Lefurgy said he did not wish to modify that evidence. The
testimony in question was as follows: He believed Mr. Borden

indicated his willingness to join ; he did not know just when, but

anyway during the trip Mr. Borden indicated that he would be

able to come in with them."

Fowler's Flim-Flam.

Mr. Fowler's constituents will Ix; surprised to learn that in

the declarations which he is making on the stump of fair business

methods in the open market, he is alluding to transactions such

as that of passing off upon the Union Trust Company a fictitious

option for $225,000 when the real purchase was $170,000. Mr.

Fowler is shown to have acted as agent of the Union Trust Com-
pany in the purchase of certain timber limits and mills. The

cost price in the option delivered to the Union Trust Company
was placed at $225,000, while the actual price received by the

owner was but $170,000. This was worked on the flam-flam prin-

ciple. Mr. Fowler first secured an option at $225,000, which the

next day he affected to reject. He succeeded in securing a new

option at $170,000. The larger one at $225,000 was that trans-

ferred to Mr. Foster's company.

For Geo. E. Foster.

Mr. George E. Foster, in his testimony before the Commis-

sion admitted that Mr. Fowler held 800 shares of stock in the

Kamloops Lumber Company in trust for him, and that he was

receiving financial a.s.sistanee from Mr. Fowler in 1904.
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Attornej'Oeneral Ouoqpbell'i Oomminlon.

A pierciDg light flaahes through the storm of turbuleuce
with which Mr. Roblin of Manitoba is aiding Mr. Borden in
bedoncUng the real issues of the campaign. That flash of light

startled the people of Manitoba when Mr. Pritchard exposed
before the Insurance Commission the extortion of a $1,000 rake-
oE by Mr. Roblin 'a colleague, Attorney-General Campbell. The
evidence is interesting indeed at a time when the Conservativi-
Premier of Manitoba is arrogating all Ihe virtues for himsell"
and his party friends in that Province. The attributes of Mr.
Borden's chief lieutenant, Mr, Foster, are also illumined by the
•ame flashlight. Here is the revelation:—

Mr, Pritchard explained to the Commission that he had
effected a sale of 40,000 acres of land belonging to the Ontario
and Western Land Company (of which Mr. Campbell was presi-

dent), his reward being a commission of 25 cents an acre. Half
-of this $10,000 he turned over to (Jeo. E. Foster, manager of the
Union Trust, and his adventures with regard to the remaining
$5,000 he thus recounted, in his cross-examination by Mr.
Shepley

:

"Did you make a proposition about this to Foster
t"

"Yes, I wrote him, offering to divide the commission. I said
I would split it in two."

"That left $5,000 to you and $5,000 to Foster t"

"It left $5,000."

"Why don't you say yes? Was there something that was
not for yourself T"

"Well, there was something that I did not get."

"What did you not gett"

"Well, Mr. Campbell—"
"What Campbell f"

"The Attorney-General. He thought that he had had a good
deal of trouble over these lands in one way and another, and he
ought to come in for $1,000, so I finally consented to let him have
that amount. '

'

"Ton say that Mr. Campbell, who was the president of the
selling company f"
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"Tefc"

"He said to yon that he thought that for hia trouble he should

get $1,000 f"

"Yes."

"When did he say thatT"

"Well, as I received these letters or telegrams I showed them
to Mr. CampbeU."

"That is to say, you kept Mr. Campbell, who is the president

of the company, advised as to the progress of matters as they

were going out"

"Yes."

"That is to say, you were candid in disclosing everything to

himt"

"Yea."

"During the progress of the negotiations
f"

"Yea."

"Did you disclose to him that you had written to Mr. Foster

offering to divide the commission?"

"Well, I think that was disclosed by the telegram which

he—"
"Which telegram?"

"The telegram mentioning the commission?"

"The one you sent?" /

"No, the one I received from Mr. Poster."

"Then up to that time had Mr. Campbell suggested that the

$1,000 should be paid to him?"

"No, it was when the thing was finally going through, when

it was a bargain."

"So that nothing was said by him as to the division of the

commission until the matter was ready to close?"

"Yes, that is right."

"Just what was said?"

Well, he said, ' I think that it would be tt» your advantage

to give me $1,000 of this commission.' "

"What did he mean by that?"
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"I Mid, 'On what ground, what have yoa done for itt' and

he said, 'Well, it will be to your advantage to give me the

amount;' aud he said, 'You go and think it over.' So I went

home and thought it over, and I thought there must be aome-

thing somewhere between or he would not say that unless it was

true. So I 'phoned him and said that I decided to give him the

$1,000, and he said he thought that I had acted wisely. I gave

him $1,000 cash. I kept the balance. #4,000."

The public would undoubtedly be pleased to have Mr. Camp-

bell give his explanation of this transaction. They would like to

be informed as to the moral and legal grounds upon which he

demanded the payment of the thousand dollars.

Beyond Wildest Hopes.

Mr. Borden's chosen friend and supporter, Mr. Fowler, the

Conservative candidate for King's and Albert, is not appealing

to his former constituents on an issue of personal purity. Mr.

Fowler in King's, like Mr. Foster, is in the pillory, and on his

defence. Mr. Fowler calls his share of the Union Trust Com-

pany transactions and the grab of C. P. R. lands "fair and

honest business" in "the open market." Does Mr. Fowler's

letter to his partner in the plot entitle him to be a field marshal

in Mr. Borden's army of purity T Let the voters of the Dominion

take a few moments to ponder over Mr. Fowler's marvellous and

historic epistle. It was dated October 4, 1902, and reads:—

"Dear Lefurgy,—We have succeeded beyond our wildest

hopes. We wired D. M.. and he met us at the train, Toronto, and

took us to his ofiSce, and gave us the route so far as located ; of

course, under cover of the strictest secrecy, so keep it mum,

except to Borden, Bennett and yourself. We expect to have a

wealthy Englishman named Lister, and Col. Pellatt in the com-

bine with us. We have increased the thing to 200,000 acres. On
arrivir J here we interviewed Sir Thomas Shaughnessy, and have

every reason to expect most generous treatment as to terms and

price. He said we should get the best that was going. We want

to arrange a meeting there when the party returns from Mont-

real. Tell Sfesars. Borden and Bennett about the meeting. It

will be necessary for at least two of us to go this fall and locate

as it could not be done in the spring, and that is one of the things

that must be arranged at the meeting. Geo. W. Fowler."

i.
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Let it be remembered that "Dear Lefurgy" is one of Mr.

Borden 'i noble standard-bearers as the Conservative candidate

in Prince, Prince Edward Isla.id.

To whom did Mr. Fowler refer in his letter to Mr. Lefurgy t

Merely railway magnates whose secrets were worth hondreda

of thousands of dollars to shrewd speculators such as Canaerva-

tive members of Parliament like Messrs. Fowler and Pope.

The "voyal Commission evidence reads like a romance at thia

period. It details that the gentleman whom Mr. Fowler and Mr.

Pope met at the train was Mr. D. D. Mann, of the Canadian

Northern Railway. The information he gave was as to the route

of that railway through the lands of the Canadian Pacific Rail-

way. Having got that information, they next went to Sir

Thomas Shaughnessy, who appears to have been most gracious

to them. Eventually a purchase was made of 200,000 acres of

land along the line of the Canadian Northern, at $3.50 an acre.

Messrs. Fowler and Pope put up $200 each, and turned to their

Conservative friend. Mr. Poster, who had the Foresters' millions

in his safe keeping as manager of the Union Trust Company.

Mr. Foster's Friendly Aid.

It would not look nice for a personage of Mr. Foster's ideals

to have been a direct beneficiary of the Conservative high finan-

ciers. It became necessary to have a tollgate for a rake-oflf to be

collected with dignity by statesmen of his traits of character.

To meet this exigency a company called the Great Northwest

Company was literally created with Foster, McGillivray and

Wilson in control.

Messrs. Fowler and Pope, having bagged the game, took their

pick of the spoils by appropriating the best 8,000 acres of the

C. P. R. area to hold for thc\r personal profit—on the side

—

when prices soared. In the main transaction Messrs. Fowler and

Pope sold to this Qreat West Company, or, in other words, to

Foster & Co., at an advance on the price paid or promised the

Canadian Pacific Railway of $1 an acre, so that on a capital of

about $400 and a $40,000 note, these two eminent financiers

cleared a considerable share of $200,000.
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Mr. Fowler in theM dealings bought property at 470,000, and

had the deed prepared as if he had paid $225,000 for it. What

dxm Mr. Borden think of Mr. Fowler's qnaliflcations nn an

aaditant teacher of public probity T

Mr. Fowler is the member of Parliament who requited the

kindness of the C. P. R. for making th i $200,000 deal, and the

8,000 acres for himself and Mr. Pope, a poa»ibility by the

malignity of his opposition to the Grand Trunk Pacific. Was

this Mr. Fowler's realization that gratitude is "a lively sense of

favors yet to come"?

Another Foster ToUgate.

It is refreshing to recall with what itelerity and ciise Mr.

Foster's toUgates worked. Here is one of them in op«'ration. as

revealed in a letter to the Manitoba Free Press from Mr. James

W. Betta, manager of the Manitohn. Ontarit) and WoHf.-i-n I.iind

Company :—

To the Editor of The Free Press;

Sir.—In your issue of to-day under report of prweedings of

the Insurance Commission in Toronto, there appears the Htate-

ment made by Mr. Foster in answ.T to Mr. Shepley's inquiry as

to lands pnrehased from the Ontario. Manitoba & Western Land

Company. Mr. Foster is reported as stating "that these lands

werj held at $5.00 per acre, wliich the syndicate refused to pay.

The manager of the company said he did not wish to lower the

price of his lands, but as ho was getting 25 cents an acre as his

commission, he agreed to give a rebate of 12V8 cents per acre,

making $5,000. for which a cheque was made payable to him

( Foster "».'

The facts are : I had no correspondence with Mr. Fowler. 1

wrote to one of the directors of the Union Trust Company, who

was also a director in our company, offering the 40,000 acres at

$5.00 per acre, hut received no answer. Subsequently Mr.

Pritchard offered us $5.00 per acre with a commission of 25

cents an acre, which we accepted.
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We KHvc Mr. I'ritchard a fheijue ft»r $5,000, and Hon. Geo.

E. Fostf-r a <hf«|H(! for 5,000. I was not a member of any lyndi-

c-ate tu purcha8<- the above lauda, and had no intrrest, only as

Mtockhold'T and nianHKer of the Ontario, Manitoba and Western

Land Company, and did not participate in any part of the com-

miHHion paid to Mr. I'oHter or to Mr. Pritchard. If Mr. Foster

made the statenu'iit a.s reported in your despatch from Toronto, I

am surprised, an 1 had no negotiations with Mr. Poster until after

th<- off<T by Mr. Pritchard had been made and accepted. I was
confident, at the time, the $5,000 went to the Union Trust Com-
pany fhnuiuh .Mr. Foster as the manager.

jAMRa W. BETTK8.

Winni|>e)f, Oet. ]'A.

The foregoing purehaw by the F'uiou Trust Company of

40,960 acres of land from the Ontario, Manitoba and Western

Land Company, is a perfect illustration of the way Foster and

his coUeaKues carried on their game of graft with the trust funds

of the Foresters.

It will be noticed that when the land was offered to the Union

Trust Company direct for $5 an acre it was too costly, but when
offered at $5 an acre to the Union Trust Company, of which 25

per cent, had to go as rake-off, $5 an acre immediately com-

(nanded .Mr. Foster's O.K. mark.

Qot Another Big Plum.

One morning Messrs. Fowler and Pope discovered that the

Foster- Mi-Oillivray wing of the s. dicate in transferring 200,000

acres of land from the Great West Ijand Company to the Union

Trust Company at an advance of 50 cents an acre were having

too much of a good thing. With prompt business alacrity a

demand for another slic* was demanded, and they secured an

addition of 5,000 shares to their previous allotment of 50,000

shares in the Great West Land Company. These Conservative

members of Parliament thus, according to Mr. Borden's gospel,

became duly qualified f«>r guardians of the public e.xchequer. if

the Dominion eleot^THte l>ecan • eonvert-s to his doctrines.
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Mr. roiter'i Mcthoda.

The original excluBive option as read before the Royal Com-

mission was given to Messrs. Fowler and Pope on May 15, 1903.

A company called the New Ontario Town and Farm Sites Com-

pany was organized to handle it. This company beoime the

Qreat West Land Company. Mr. Foster secured a lean of

$140,000 of the Foresters' money for the subsidiary company.

The land company took up the C. P. R. option, less 8,000 acres

held back by Messrs. Fowler and Pope. The price of the land

was 1,000 shares of stock of the land company. The actual money

was that furnished by the Foresters. Of this 1,000 shares of

stock Mr. Stevenson says in his evidence that Messrs. Foster,

McGillivray and Wilson, in the transaction, "loosed" to them-

selves $1,500, $1,000 and $1,000 of stock, respectively. Mr.

Stevenson deposed i>efore the Commi.ssion that "If they pro-

tected the Trust Company they must necessarily take money out

of their own pocket; if they protected themselves they would do

it at the expense of the Trust Company; and that I regarded as

an inconsistent position for gentlemen to occupy as trustees."

When Mr. Foster was called upon by the Royal Commission

to produce the stock book of the Great West Land Company he

twice refused, but eventually adopted the Falstaffian policy and

produced '.

OoniervfttiTe Editors Oonvinced.

The foregoing evidence was so conclusive and unanswerable

that in the minds of the editors of two Conservative newspapers

it called for the retirement from public life of men so dis-

credited. This is demonstrated by the following utterance from

the Montreal Star on the night that Mr. Foster was the great

conspicuous absentee from Mr. Borden's meeting in Toronto.

"The Liberal press is constantly asking why Mr. Foster does

not accompany Mr. Borden on his tour. We are even told that

Mr. Foster, who is the Conservative candidate for one of the

Toronto constituencies, will not appear with his leader at the

big Toronto meeting. To these questions neither Mr. Borden

nor Mr. Foster offers any reply. But it is surely to Mr. Bor-

den's credit—if this divorce be of his making—that he declines

to preach his policy of purity from a platform upon which sits.
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•h

ready to apeak after him, the man who, ai manager of a truat

company, poured the funds in his keeping—'the truat funda of

the widow and the orphan'—into a apeculation for hia own per-

sonal profit."

The above in what the Conservative Montrfal Star thinks of

a man who has hopes of again becoming Finance Minister of

the Dominion.

Condemned by Editor Willlson.

'" '^n' ti< ' <eni'ng News, ono of the strongest papers in

<»nt r,i, ••..u . spccts to the Conservative candidate for

',< it' "ur'if; ' . lie 15. 1907, in these trenchant terms:

t. the Conservative candidate in North To-

fh ' .ectors to condemn at the polls the reckleaa

( /e.nment of the public funds, he will talk

1 ;i 4 contract system of purchase, of the aliena-

te •< .>; p>,', I iapi'.4 to speculators, of the outfit of the steamer

Ar uc and .

~ n • furnishings of the ice-breaker Montcalm. Hia

vl 1- '-luiiwiit rtrill rest on the fact that the Oovemraent ia

txt: ' -nt A' '. its money, careless of its future obligations

and 'good' to its friends. Moreover, he will phow that all the

money pouring into the Ottawa Treasury, at the rate of over

$l,5OO,(>0O a week, comes from the people of this country, and
is held in trust by the .Administration for the public good. And
all this will he true.

Acme of Effrontery.

"Yet the men of North Toronto will be urged, as a protest

against this extravagance, to elect Mr. George E. Poster, ex-

Manager of the Union Trust Company. It was Mr. Oeorge E.

Foster who was unable to see any co7iflict of duty in his dual

position as Manager of this company and partner in a Western

land company tchich uni Union Trust money to carry on its

speculative and hazards business. It was Mr. Poster who be-

lieved. <>r affected tr -i-.jve. that the mere transfer of money
from the Independent Order of Porsters to the T'nion Trust

Company left that money free for speculative investment, that

it ceased to be held in trust for the assured in the Independent

Order of Poresters. It was Mr. Poster who knew perfectly well

the laws of this country concerning the investment of trust
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funds, and who violated thoie laws by borrowing money on be-

half of a ayndicate from the UuiOn Trust Company, of which

he was Manager, on the security of stock in a speculative land

company. Later the present Supreme Chief Banger insisted

on ^e return of the stock, and the substitution of a mortgage.

"It was Mr. Foster who, in the face of these undeniable

facts, alleged with the most remarkable assurance that the in-

surance inquiry was instituted solely to injure him, and that

it probed unduly into his private business. And it is a man of

such remarkable obliquity of moral vision and tuck a tuperb

quality of 'nerve' who <ukg for election as a condemnation of

the mishandling of trust funds by the Ottawa Administration.

Mr. Foster would have made a better figure before the public

if he had admitted the impropriety of his act like a man, in-

stead of wailing about political persecution and private busi-

ness. It is not private business to handle trust hand». It is

public business, and the more public it in the better for the

owners of the money."
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